
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              August 27, 2019

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

August 27, 2019  8:30 AM
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  2. CONFERENCE  WITH  LEGAL  COUNSEL  –  ANTICIPATED  LITIGATION  –  Significant 
exposure  to  potential  litigation  pursuant  to  (2)  of  subdivision  (d)  of  Government  Code 
§54956.9 (one case). Facts and circumstances: Threatened State revocation of local primacy 
delegation agreement.

 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson.

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all opensession items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.)
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              August 27, 2019

  8. County Administrator  Information Services  Request Board approve and award 
the contract for Information Technology Improvement Services to InfoTech 
Research Group of Las Vegas, Nevada in an amount not to exceed $24,120.90 for 
the period of September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2021, billed at $12,060.45 
annually, authorize payment for the first year's invoice contingent on the Board's 
approval of the Fiscal Year 20192020 budget, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.

 

  9. Public Works  Request Board:
A.      Approve Resolution No. 201934, authorizing the filing of an application for a 
CDA matching grant for “Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death 
Valley Airport” in the amount of $87,835.50; 
B.      Authorize acceptance of the allocation of said state AIP matching funds for the 
project;
C.      Authorize execution of said AIP Matching Grant Agreement for this project; 
and,
D.      Authorize the Public Works Director to sign any documents required to apply 
for and accept subject funds of behalf of the County of Inyo.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

  10. Planning Department  Request Board hear a presentation from Alta Planning + 
Design on the draft Olancha Cartago Corridor Study, which is being completed using 
SB1 funding administrated by Caltrans.

 

  11. Planning Department  Request Board: A) receive a presentation by Planning 
Department staff regarding a Senate Bill 2 (SB2) grant application and a request for 
direction from the Board to submit the grant application; and B) approve Resolution 
No. 201935, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California Authorizing Application for, and Receipt of, SB 2 Planning Grant Funds," 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign.

 

  12. Health & Human Services  Request Board ratify and approve the Allocation 
Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Department of Public Health 
for the provision of the local Tobacco Control Program, in an amount not to exceed 
$328,065 for the period of July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020, and authorize the 
HHS Director to sign Allocation Agreement No. CTCP1714 and Prospective 
Payment Invoices.

 

  13. Health & Human Services  Request Board ratify and approve the CDPH 
Immunization Branch Subrecepient Information Form which acknowledges changes 
to the Scope of Work (SOW) and Budget Application to the current Immunization 
Local Assistance Funding between County of Inyo and California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign the FY 201920 Federal Compliance 
Requirements form.

 

  14. Water Department  Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 2 to 
the contract between Inyo County and Environmental Science Associates (ESA) for 
the Owens River Water Trail (ORWT) CEQA Study, extending the term of the 
contract to October 31, 2019, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

  15. Clerk of the Board  Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meetings of August 6, 2019 and August 20, 2019.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              August 27, 2019

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.)
 

10:30 A.M. 16. Health and Human Services  Request Board receive presentation Health and 
Human Services and Life, Remedies, and Celebrations on In Home Supportive 
Services (IHSS) program.

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  17. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Scott Armstrong 
 
RE:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and award the contract for Information Technology Improvement Services to Info-Tech 
Research Group of Las Vegas, Nevada in an amount not to exceed $24,120.90 for the period of September 1, 
2019 through August 31, 2021, billed at $12,060.45 annually, authorize payment for the first year's invoice 
contingent on the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Information Services (IS), a department of 11 people, is responsible for the purchase, implementation, 
installation, configuration and support of all County information technology infrastructure, equipment, systems, 
software applications and services. IS also provides end-user support for the more than 450 employees at more 
than 40 locations throughout the County.  We manage and support approximately 500 computer workstations, 
nearly 80 servers, more than 30 network switches, 20 point-to-point network links, nearly two dozen full-time VPN 
connections, approximately 50 networked copiers, more than 200 networked printers, and all County-owned desk 
phones and cell phones.

With responsibilities this broad, it is important for IS to continually look for opportunities to improve the delivery of 
our services and streamline our operational processes.  Info-Tech Research Group is an established IT 
consulting organization that will work with IS toward strategic, continuous improvement so that our team can 
provide better services and support for the County.  Info-Tech will also assist IS in developing necessary IT-
related policies, and will provide contemporary IT operations training.  Additional services as part of this 
agreement include technical advisory services, and an evaluation of the IS Director's performance and 
effectiveness based on input from other Inyo County Department Heads, followed by a measurable performance 
improvement plan.  This agreement will engage the entire IS department, and we are expecting to realize time 
savings in our daily operations as well as improved service delivery.

Respondents to the IT Improvement Services RFP:
- Client First Technology, $88,737
- Empire Consultants, $32,500
- Info-Tech Research Group, $24,120

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose to not approve and award this contract to Info-Tech Research Group, but this is not 
recommended, as this engagement should help us improve our internal operations and become more efficient in 
our delivery of services.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding is requested in the the Information Services FY2019-2020 budget (011801) in the Professional Services 
object code (5265).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Info-Tech-Inyo-ScannedContract



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Group

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation Technology lmprovement SERV|GES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
lnformation Tech

Las NV
services of lnfo-Tech REssearch Group of

hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), and in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the Count/s request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Seotember 1 ,2019 to August 31,2021
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor the sum total of
and ninety Cents

for performance of all of the services and
completion of all of the work described in Attachment A.

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement.

C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disabili$ retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit Upon Amount Pavable Under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for all services and work to be performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
Twentv-four thousand one hundred twentv Dollars and ninetv cents

County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limif').

or reimbursement requested by Contractor for
services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and Pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of all services
and work set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all services and work performed by Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement. This statement will identify the date on which the services were performed and
describe the nature of the services and work which was performed on each day. Upon receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, Coun$ shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 08107t2018



F. Federal and StateTaxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, Coun$ will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) Coung will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibilig of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Countyto Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments

to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in

Aftachment A. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require a
varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure that
all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame set
forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by

Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.

Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits

in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits

will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide

County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and

permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and Coung as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the

services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by

Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 13
( I ndependent Contractor)

Page 2 08t07t2018



7. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The Coung of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUS OF CONTR,ACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be
considered an employee of Contractor. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSEANDINDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 'l 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 0810712018



12. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express wriften consent of County.

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
Coung, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express wriften

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 4 08t07t2018



consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibili$ of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabilig Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Gode, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVER^ABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION

The abili$ of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, Coung has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modifi7 this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiffing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph tweng-
tvro (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTTCE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5 08107t2018



County of lnyo
lnformation Services
168 N. Edwards St.
lndependence, CA 93526

Contractor:

lnfo-Tech Research Group
3960 Howard Hushes Pkwv S50C
LasVeqas, NV 89169

Department
Address
City and State

Name
Address
City and State

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by

reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

County of lnyo Standard Gontracl - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6 08t0712018



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Grouo

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation Technoloov lm SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY-

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

Type or Print Name Type or Print Name

Dated Dated

AND LEGALITY:

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

AS P EL REQUIREMENTS:

Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

PageT o8t07t2018



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Group

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation Technology lmprovement SERVIGES

TERM:

FROM : September 1,2019 TO August 31,2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

SEE ATTACHED SCOPE OF WORK

County of lnyo Standard Contrac{ - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8 08t07t2018



I N tro -'I'Flo I I

APPROACH TO ACCOMPI, SH THE SCOPE OF WORK

The RFP identified a list of services and tools required from the successfulvendor to drive IT
improvement. The following sections provide an overview of our services available to align with these
business objectives and value-added services available throughout the term ofthe contract. All services
are available for a minimum one-year term. Access is available for up to l0 members of your
Information Services staff.

RESEARCH, TOOLS, TEMPLATES, AND POLICIES

Info-Tech Research Grour assists CIOs" IT leadership and orsanizations achieve what they want most:
measurable results while assisting in developing teams to meet tomorrow's challenges. Our experience
ensures the research and advisory srpportdetvered is driven from best practices from industry peers.

We do lots of 'what' and 'why' research, but the bulk of our product focuses on 'how'. We have over 600
blueprints that you and your team use to actually improve a process or deliver on a project. Other vendors
frame a problem and provide case studies about how a few companies are tackling the problem and
provide forecasting and trends - it's primarily an executive education product and they do that very well.
But from there, you really are on your own to figure out how to get it done. B5r contrast, we build out the
project road map for you, the communications tools, planning documents, templates, etc. that you need to
actually do the project. That reduces the risk of project failure and delays dramatically, and gives the
project leader a huge head start in getting the project done. All of Info-Tech's research is based on a
COBIT 5, CMMI, TOGAF, ITIL, NIST,ISO, and DAMADMBOK2 framework(s).

Info-Tech uses a number of formats to effectively present our research including solution sets, project
blueprints, tools, templates, analyst calls, webinars, videos, on-site strategy sessions, events, and
workshops. Our focus is to help your organization navigate critical technology projects through a guided
implementation. We move beyond reports with action-based research to drive sustainable IT
improvement through innovative research.

Our competencies include:

. Providing analyst advisory services that include both written and verbal consultations
o Assisting with vendor and technology sourcing support and selection decisions
o Supporting critical IT projects and implementations throughout the year
. Providing IT governance and process support and improvement advice
o Assisting senior management with organizational planning and strategy
r Providing a self-servng 24 hour resource of written research
o Providing benchmarking reports that include business alignment assessments
. Building business cases forkey IT investments made througfiout the year

The Blueprints and Resources published on Info-Tech's website are chosen based on market direction,
client demand, and IT trends; non-sponsored, independent research. We offer over 600 do-it-yourself
project and process Blueprints. In addition, we offer thousands of Trend Reports, Industry Notes,
Reference fuchitectures, Toolkits, Software Reviews, Benchmarking Reports, IT Policy Templates,
Toolkits, Case Studies, and Videos developed by our industry experts to help our members save time and
money when it comes to tackling their most important IT initiatives.

All topics covered in the core Blueprints are organized under eight research silos:

o CIO

Page I l0

County oflnyo
IT Inprovement Services - RFP-IS-1904



Ixt.'o-Tlr(lll

o Infrastructure & Operations
r EnterpriseArchitecture
I APPlications
r Project & Portfolio Management
o Data& Business Intelligence
o Securrty
. Vendor Management

The research is then categorized based on further clarified sub sections. All written materials are also

easily found via the search bar function based on extensive metadata and key words specific to topic,
author, or title. Research is available in an unlimited fashion to all users through the2417 web-portal-
www.infotech.com. Sample publications:

Develop and Deplov IT Security Policies
Standardize the Service Desk
Raise Your Diqital Maturitv
Combine Securitv Risk Management Components Into One Program

Own the Cloud: & Action Plan

Position IT to Support and Be a Leader in Onen Data Initiatives
Develon a Plan to Pilot Service Manasement

Create a Customer-Centric Disital Strategv

Ensure Meanineful Connections With Citizens Usins New Interaction Channels

Redesisn IT Governance to Drive Ontimal Business Results
Design a Customer-Centric Digital Operating Model
Take Control of trne Metrics

Use Apolication Metrics that Matter
Develop Meaningful Service Metrics to Ensure Business and User Satisfaction

Leverage Application Development Metrics to Gauge Process and Increase Success

Implement Aeile Practices that Work
Optimize the IT Operations Center

The County of Inyo can contactthe authors of the research publications to discuss the research in more
detail and the applicability of the research to their business contef at the County and their role. The

consultations are typically delivered via WebEx so the member can view each section of the research

through a screen-sharc.

Each named user will receive unlimited access to our website where they can browse through our
extensive catalog of IT research, download our ready-to-use tools and templates, book experiences, and

save their favorite content to their research library.

Members will have a unique user name and password to access the content. Weekly e-mails will be sent

to summarize new publications applicable to their role. Members can also customize their research feed

to easily find new research by category, role, date, popularity, resouce type, and keyword search.

Online Features

. Unique User t ogin Credentials

. Advanced Keyword Search
o Filter Content by Area and Type
o Content Preview

Page | 1l

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904



lxtro*l'rioIl

o Mdeo Content Player
o Content Downloading
e PersonalLibrary for Saved Research
. Training Course Enrollrnent
o Book Experiences
r Share Content with Peers
r Share Content on Social Media
o Customizable Account Settings

Research is provided in a step-by-step format with tools and templates to enable CIO's and IT Leaders to
get to action. See example below - Build an IT Budget that Demonstrates Value Delivery

Start here - read the Executive Brief
Read our concise Executive Brief to flnd out how to build a budget that dernonstrates value delivery

[l BuilC an lT Budget Thai Osmonstrates Value Detivery - Gf
Exeeuliye Brief

[| OuAO an ff Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery - GtGt
Phasee 1-3

1. Plan

Plan for success.

[l Build an lT Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery - Phase
1: Plan

[| lr AuCget lnterviaw Guide

2. Build
Build the budget.

@ Suild an lT Eudget That Dernonstrates Value Delivery - Phase
?: Build

Sl lT Cost Forecasting Tool

3. Sell

Sell the budget.

[l Bu]ld an lT Eudget That Dernonstrates Value Delivery - Phase
3: Sell

fl feuCgetPresentation

TheCountyoflnyowillhaveateamoflTstaffmembersaccessingcontentonthewebsite. Info-Tech
enables users to save research on the web-portal and share with other users within their organization.
This service increases teamwork and collaboration within the department. It also enables our members to

Pagel12

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

GI

GI

GI

GT

GT

GI



Ixtro-'I'Holl

organize content. The home page also features key research applicable to your role and the ability to
direct$ schedule appointments to explore research in further detail with the authors/analysts.

New research is published weekly on the web-portal. Each IT team member will receive an update when

research is published. This prompt ensures frequent usage of the subscription. Your dedicated Account
Director and Executive Advisors/Partners will also schedule times with each member to review new

research available so you receive consistent value from the subscription.

E-Mail preferences can be set to each user's preferences.

ADVISORY SERVICES

Info-Tech has over 300 Analysts available to guide IT Leaders through the research on the web-portal and

discuss IT topics in more detail to ensure best practices are in place. Members can initiate a call through

the web-portal or by contacting their dedicated Account Management Team.

Please refer to the following link to review the experience of our analysts: Analvst Bioeraphies. As the

fastest growing IT research frm in the world, we are regularly adding talent to our research and

consulting practice.

Info-Tech's analysts are not revenue driven but customer service driven and ultimately, customer focrsd"
The only goal of our analysts is to provide the right advice when our clients need it in a tailored manner to
best suit the specific needs of our member's particular environment.

Analyst calls can be requested through your dedicated Account Manager or directly on the member's
library/home page. We offer a 24-hour turnaround for ourAnalyst Inquiry Service. Multiple staff can be

on one call with Info-Tech's Expert Anatysts and there are no limits to the number of follow-up calls on

any given topic.

Our analysts are available to assist the IT Leaders and extended team members with the following:

o Information to validate or discuss the best direction for an IT project
r Assistance getting the buy-in from other members of your organization
o Provide an objective third-party to answer your lT/management questions

o Review of vendors being evaluated for a particular IT solution
. Guidance and direction for process improvements and program upgrades

. Guided Implementation assistance for your major IT projects from beginning to end

Calls are typically booked for one-hour timeslots but it is important to keep in mind that Info-Tech has a

focus on delivering value within our analyst interactions and does not determine a set limit on a particular

topic. There is a focus on getting the appropriate solution with a combination of both analyst expertise as

well as our written research that are supplemented with tools and templates instead of measuring time
during a potentially critical advice related conversation with one of our ana$sts.

As a major component of Info-Tech's written research, our World Class Operations Framework
Blueprints and Guided Implementations provide a detailed and step-by-step outline to optimize,
implementandmanagetheCountyoflnyo'scorelTprocesses. Info-Tech'sWorldClassOperations
materials are based on a COBIT 5 and ITIL Framework and the processes outlined are extremely
important to any Senior Technology department head's job.

The published research is made up of process modules broken down into step-by-step plans to lead your
members from the opening phase of the process such as assessments, currerf state ana$sis and corporate

Page I 13

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904



INtto-l'ltcll

goal identification, all the way to the final and ideal state with the assistance of a formalized strategy
roadmap, stakeholder buy-in strategy, a communication plan and final deliverables.

The most comprehensive aspect of Info-Tech's World Class Operations Frameworks and Guided
Implementations is access to our expert analyst team. Through Info-Tech's proposed subscription, you
will have the ability to book analyst calls to gain desired expertise on your most pressing technology
concerns. These calls are one hour long in duration and the best way for Info-Techto provide your
members with tailored and extensive advice and direction in a one-one-one format.

Flaving all of the steps, procedures and tools & templates to help you get the job done and your processes
optimized is one half of Info-Tech's focus. The second aspect is ensuring your members have access to
analyst expertise via conversational means which Info-Tech sees as paramount in terms of specific and
tailored advice to your organization's particular environment.

Through the Guided Implementation process, a series of calls will be administered between Info-Tech's
subject matter expert of the particular topic of interest and the point of contact/project manager at the
County. The first call will be a general scoping of the particular IT topic of interest. During that ca[ a
tentative timetable will also be set for further calls as you move along the process of that particular
technology's implementation guidelines (as set out in our Guided Implementation Blueprints on the
website). The Guided Implementation process will be extremely advantageous for your members as the
Implementation Blueprints accompanied by the analyst's on-going support ensures optimum
proc es s/project execution.

For every project you start, we have an expert analyst waiting to help you execute best practices and stay
on schedule. It's on-dematrd project support when you need it the most. Each Guided Implementation
conducted with our analysts saves our members an average of $22,517 and l4 days of valuable IT
resoufces.

The following graphic is an example of how a Guided Implementation is organized and delivered:

1. Understand begt practiseg to glow my own PPM solution
Do;eiop a PPt{ sa'rlt?tr lhai ;s aitc.(lallle adoittabie. ryid etlt:(ive

El Storyboard: Crow YourOm PPM SotLition(@l@

[l rel,l Strategy nevelopmenl tocl@

2. lmplement the home-g.swn PPM solutiotr
Siarl adiv.:iy !t.)naljnlJ ard !]royrirq tllo pelt!dio

EI Project Portf0lio Workbook 1@

3. Malnlain and sntlnue to g.ow m! FPill solution
tli:{rlze lllc efiecltrerest 3nd value rl |he PPi, :clctoil

g PPM Standard Operaling Procedure @

Page I 14

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

Thrs grided mpiementalion is a three call advr5ory process

L Canlt Oefine yourPFl,{ strategy and goals

Thrs step will help you detemrne your baseline PPIJ m6turi!. analyze pPl"4

cosl dnve.s. valdale your PPI'l b€nefis assumptions and fomalize portfolio
goals and nrelrfs

L Call f2: Desrgn and build lhe home.grovfi FPl,t nolution

'Ihrs s1€p v/ill help you selecl potrrlale customrze and eKend one of
lnfo-Tech's lhree PPtil solution tenrplttes ThF 3lep !./rll rnclude detintng the
pPl,1 engagement process to determrne requ'retnents based or
organrzalonal and slak€holder nesds.

t Catt ;*-q Conduct your anrual PPl,4 health-check

This step will help you evaluate and rntprove the PPld soluiion to maxrmrze ls
adoptron and value Additlonatly. thts slep may iltclude conltnuing to huild

rnaturlt-v towald rmplementing a commerctal lool.

$ eutA"a ft.plem*ntafion

SchidrLr Y.ll{ Frrst C31i



Info-Tech's professional services practice is unique in that it blends the knowledge and experience of a
research ftm, with the methodology and proven delivery capabilities of a large consultancy, while
maintaining the flexibility and effective pricing of a smaller organization. Additionally, because we are a

research organization, our ongoing coverage of the complete range of IT solutions means we have aview
to the future and can help your organization in understanding not only its current needs, but its future ones

as well. Info-Tech uses COBIT and ITIL as a standard IT framework.

Get support for your IT leadership team. Our Roadmaps help you build and manage core IT functions to
systematically improve performance. Each Roadmap includes a series of diagnostics to help you assess

strengths and weaknesses ofyour curent state as well as help you envision your target. We provide you

with tools and training to help you succeed at key projects that are proven to enhance your department's

capability and drive increased business satisfaction. Step-by-step initiatives ensure that your IT
leadership team has a plan in place for creating real improvement over the course of your membership.

The dedicated Executive Mvisors and extended analyst team will work with your IT team to focus

attention on key projects and initiatives most important to Maryland Judiciary. See sample engagement

plans below for a IT Security function.

DAIA*DRIVE!{ IN$ICHT PROCFAM s Ecu n ITY
KEY IN'TIATIVE PI.AN

step ? l4l

Br.rild Your Security Strstegy

Sr€p 3 Lrd

€stablish o Policy and Audit
Framework
:,,.jr r ,- -.a!.:irr !! it :r -r', ir, .itr': i).:: ,/:{ '' i ? - .
.r,' -,i,:r,_J .liiri/:, r-.1..t t,-r ;3rt,i;i!: lrr,,; -:-.;

it,- --.i.!31:t- 
... i.'j,1,.t.,. .;.iic'r:..::

-,f, it ., ,ra.;, : .'11:\,r1ri :,1i i,r l

l(J1 t1 _.a,dilat.,'.r.:,'. _,1, r..,,, ,.. ,ir,.:. . !'-
t |t : ".j :aat.:,.: tr,.:j I t,:,j.,'
.i,trir,.,-;),i fi;,a,r '.- :t':Ei at.J a.:t

[:,j.,:1]11,,( i|-. :i;:t.rir'.r, I !,r,re:l;{11

Qstept I
Diagnose Security lssues

Q Slep a [,trt

Oevelop your Risk
Management Program

step 5 fur!

Estsblish Mitigation
Effectiveness Control

step 6 le!

Adopt Hurnsn Centric
Security Development

i-. _ .-r.,,,ilir,tril!:ir :tr1lr.: ;..,,.,i I 1, ..:;
, ir;l ljrl:rr).r.'!rr.tlr:.:i rirl. 11', ,.iLr'ri'
i,,- . . .ir,lr'-,. r r{r:.::,,:.iij-- rflr :....::r.i.r,,_

. ! l r;:1i :,; .', r', ,.' - ." :...' i, : r . .: :
r:: ,;'

.,ii.J'i{' r,ri rrJrlr,, f1 i L.:'r.,,'. ir,,ai !ii. I i,.l

fjr-rir,r,,.ti i,:,,.i,j, r-:' .l. itr,;,r
, il.i' !;r':::' ! il

1.,, 
'',,,,i''..

Q stel: i ['4.

Develop Your lncideal Response
Capabihtres

:r- -.-r. :(:...f.11 rDe..-'!,, r- ..t-;,
'rrf ,lSt i i*ri 1a - aa)?"! .-t'r-et \? ,: a:. .

4,1 ')1O(1'.at:'

srep I lql

Optimize Your Budget

slep a !.!i

Build Your Metrics Proqram

,,'.:1 l.t: .,, ,'l' ,:-.''i'';'
i.',t.,,. 1-..i ...,'r,tt' ,..

,;. r, '- r:jili '::'lr'r"-

Info-Tech also offers a program called Purchase Optimization. This service is very popular with our

clients as they are able to send our analysts their particular contracts and documenb (Microsoft, SA].1

Storage, Data Center Co-location, Enterprise Networks etc.) for us to review. This process includes an

initial review of the contract by our analysts and then a call" similar to an advisory call with the analyst

that reviewed the document. Docurnent Reviews also include Business Cases, Business/IT Policies,

Strategic Plans, EA Frameworks, RFP's, Job Descriptions, etc.

Page I 15

County oflnyo
IT Inprovement Services - RFP-IS-1904



I x p0 -'f'H c ll

Info-Tech does not place a page limit on document reviews or a limit on the number of document reviews
completed during the term of a membership. Through this call our analyst is able to provide you with
tailored insight for potential savings, compliance issues, appropriate feature options and general best
practice tips for your contract negotiation process. A summarized document will be provided.

IT STAFF'ING ANALYSIS

IT Staffing Assessment - Our comprehensive report shows you exactly where IT stafftime is going and
whether or not it's effectively driving results. Communicate how IT staff support the business and use
included feedback from your staffto guide improvement exercises. Industry benchmarking is included.

Please review the sample report: Samole Reoort - IT Staffins As sessment.pdf

Benefits of completing Info-Tech's IT Staffing Assessment

L Staffmg Benchmarking: see your staffing metrics at a glance and how they compare against your
peers across over 4,000 organizations; use this data to determine whether you and your team are
in line with industry benchmarks and how to course-correct

2. Time Breakdown by IT Function:assess staffrrg levels across 20 IT functions; compare staffrrg
levels against business priorities to ensure alignment

3. Time Breakdown by Activity: evaluate resource time spent on high value vs. low value activities;
establish targets by area and ensure your team has the support to get there

4. IT Function Effectiveness Assessments: get scorecard-based assessments of IT funclion
effectiveness from both IT and the business

The IT Staffing Analysis when combined with our CIO Elusiness Vsion program willhelp build strategic
alignment with County priorities.

Our analysts will work with the County to support all aspects of IT Staffing and Organizational Design to
optimize resources. Sample publications :

Optimize the IT Operatine Model
Redesisn Your IT Structure
Build a Stratesic Workforce Plan

IT.F'OCUSED TRAINING F'OR IS-DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES

Info-Tech provides an entire research silo related to Talent Leadership research specifically targeted to
improve your organization's strategies on how to lead your IT team effectively. We provide proven
resources that willhelp your IT leadership team become better managers.

Much like our information technology focused research, ourTalent Leadership resources include Guided
Implementations, Data Driven Diagnostic tools, Solution Sets and pre-written tools, templates and job
descriptions all designed to ensure your IT department is a driving force for the overall business.

Our Advisors will help your team leverage the resources and provide executive coaching as part of your
professional development goals.

The Talent Leadership silo also includes The Info-Tech Academy, whichenables your staff to receive
training in one of the 45 core IT processes (based on COBIT). 9 certificates are available by completing
the outlined solution sets for each process. We understand that IT departments struggle to develop their

Page I 16

County oflnyo
IT Inrprovement Services - RFP-IS-1904

a

a

a



Ixtro-TucIt

staff. This is a unique opportunity to increase the utilization and value of an IT research service. Each

topic is accompanied by webinars and videos with our subject matter exper$ and IT members.

For example, the Data & BI Certificate includes the following courses:

. Elusiness Intelligence & Reporting
o Data Architecture
o Data Quality

The courses include a combination of videos, research, and activities. This is a great opportunity for the

ClO/Executives to learn and develop but also train direct reports and colleagues more effectively in these

areas. The access to the program is unlimited and unrestricted to all IT staff at the County of Inyo.

Each of the designated members can assign courses from the 45 core IT processes (based on the COBIT
framework) to their staff at any level as shown in the screenshot

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT & CONTINUOUS IT IMPROVEMENT

Info-Tech's mission is to help clients tackle their key IT issues by enabling data-driven decision making

with our consulting quality deliverables that are low effort and high impact. Our data-driven programs

help justify IT spending to provide the most value to the organization as a whole by focusing on the end-
user. Info-Tech'sprogramsarethekeytocomprehensive,top-to-bottomalignmentwiththebusiness.

Three important goals are achieved:

L Increased transparcncy into and satisfaction with IT with clear performance metrics

2. Business support for IT projects aligned with business goals

3. Increased investment in IT resources

Info-Tech's Diaenostic & Benchmarkine progranrs enable our members to collect the data they need to
make key IT decisions. Info-Tech's proposal includes Diagnostic and Benchmarking Programs

throughout the term ofthe contract targeted towards the IT Business Heads and Senior Leaders.

With data from over 45,000 business leaders, we understand what activities correlate with high IT
performance and can help you successfully complete these activities in your own organization.

PagellT

County of Inyo
IT Inprovement Services - RFP-IS-1904

Course Information

Pill i,ri ilrsrfpss h;,rI r') bustfes:i rfi*l;rqeti.g bv t6le,r:rrr!t :tai1 Ll (i.re ' :9!r,
Ilrs r !i 1r:ie,rra(e... ul) Irrrl lri il. Dala & Lll |-"riliri fl.

camelAddNry

Assign the Business lntelligence &
R€porting Course

sELE('' !MPLoYEEIS)

Phas€ Two
Elakraig llre {,1r,?rrl fll Fraal ce

Tiile: Bilsr'r!.i:t lr:.ll(le,\:e.!, ft s|(rf r{r if, )itr!,e

Numbd ol colFe Modules: J
€slimated Time to Complete: i .r i) fitr!ir

Executiv€ Brief

Phase one
tJ.rler.lland llre 8r;rre55 [,oinexi and $

Landafa;:tr

Phase Three
(]eaie i Bl ,lna,lJr,ro l-'' r}rf:rnriirr!



I trt t.'o -'f' f, c l I

Unlimited access to diagnostic/benchmarking programs are available with the proposed subscription.
This is a key differentiator of our service offering and a value-added service for the County. The
following sections highlight key diagnostic and benchmarking programs available to support IT
Executives and CIOs.

CIO Business Vision - Stakeholder Management is a critical aspect of running a successful IT
department. Info-Tech's CIO Business Vsion program is a low effort, high impact program that will give
you detailed report cards on the organization's satisfaction with IT's core services.

Use these insights to understand your key business stakeholders, find out what is important to them, and
improve your interactions. The CIO Business Vsion survey is administered by our research team upon
request. The valuable statistics you will receive from this survey range from Stakeholder satisfaction
metrics, IT capacity metrics, and departmental metrics including stakeholder feedback reports. The value
of this survey has five key points:

Plan your stakeholder strategy with Info-Tech
Eluild consensus & accor.ntability within IT
Brief critical stakeholders within the Government
Build relationships with key decision-makers
Create company and business unit action plans

l.
2.
J.
4.
5.

Please review the following sample report: Samnle Reoort - CIO Business Msion. pdf

The most important thing a CIO can do is understand the business needs and actively measure that the
business is satisfred. Info-Tech's CIO Business Vision program allows our clients to do just that by
receiving feedback on key IT functions.

CEO-CIO Alignment Prosram - I would encounge IT Leaders take advantage of this program at the
beginning of the membership so we can effectively set up an engagement plan over the course of the year
that will provide the most value to your department and the organization as a whole. For decades, IT-
business alignment has been touted as the next dimension of effective IT. Yet many IT leaders are still
without the tools they need to understand and support business priorities.

Decipher business needs by understanding the CEO's/Head of the Business's perspective. Automate IT-
business alignment so IT can operate effectively and generate tangible value for your business.

As leader of an IT department, you recognize that your ideas, priorities, and perspectives differ from
those of business leaders. This program eliminates the guesswork and starts closing the gaps between
these perspectives.

By taking part in the CEO-CIO Alignment Program, you have already taken the first step to building IT-
business alignment that optimizes IT and drives business value. This report shares insights from the
survey component of our program. It will help your IT division:

. Understand the Business Head's perception of and vision for IT in your business

. Identify and build core IT processes that automate IT-business alignment. Create a plan to address alignment gaps impeding business growth

. Deliver your plan to demonstrate IT value and progress

Please review the following sample report: Sample Report - CEO-CIO Alienment.pdf

Page I 18

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904



IT l\{anagement & Governance Diaqnostic

Info-Tech's IT Management and Governance Diagnostic is a new innovative progrirm available to the

County, which allows IT Executive's to understand their team's perception of the importance and

effectiveness of their technology processes. Build consensus around which processes are important and
ineffective by conducting an IT team alignment exercise.

The program enables the IT organizationto create a customized process improvement roadmap to
maximize impact and focus time and resources more efficiently and accurately.

There are 4 key steps that will guide you through the program to optimize your IT processes:

1. Map Your Process Landscape - Determine which processes your team believes need more
attention so that you can effectively allocate your time and resources across all process initiatives.
Understand what your next steps should be for each of the processes in your organization based

on the feedback received from your entire team

2. Process Spotlight - Dive deeper into each processes'performance. Highlight contentious areas

and understand how aligned your team is for each process.

3. Team Alignment - Use the results to facilitate a team alignment exercise with your team.
Prioritize your team's process improvementefforts by getting opposing views on the table and

reconciling the differences to build consensus.

4. Ownership & Accountability - Assign process ownership and hold team members accountable for
process improvement initiatives to ensure successful implementation and to reafize the benefits
from more effective processes.

Info-Tech uses a "heat-map" style graphic to identify the effectiveness and relative importance of each IT
process. The processes below align with the COBIT 5 Framework of IT

STRATEGY & lT Management & Governanee Framework
A eompreh€nsive and coffiled st o{ resesrch tc
h€lp yon opi mize snd rmprove yru coG lT proce3ses

tt4i**,a;,&u{TrJtlt
& *FqfiATlCfis

FINAt\tCiAl-
MAI*A{it:MEf'll * ANCHITECTURS

Ppt\t &
PROJECTS

Page I 19

County oflnyo
IT Improvenrent Services - RFP-IS-1904

c()BrT&



I x r"o -TEC H

Additional IT function diagnostic programs include

IT Security Diagnostic - The IT Security Diagnostic Program is a low effort, high impact progriiln
designed to help IT Security Leaders assess and improve their security practices. Gather and
report on IT Security governance, business satisfaction, and effectiveness to understand where
you stand and how you can improve.

Application Portfolio Assessment - Application portfolio management is nearly impossible to
perform without an honest and thorough understanding of end user sentiment toward IT software.
Develop data driven insights to help you decide which applications to retire, upgrade, re-train on
or maintain, to meet the demands of the business.

a

a

End User Satisfaction - Service optimization is nearly impossible to perform without an honest
and thorough understanding of end user sentiment toward IT services and software.

Data Quality Scorecard - Our comprehensive report shows you how the business feels about data
quality and what the most pressing issues are. Use the feedback to guide improvement efforts and
develop a focused action plan.

Proiect Portfolio Management Diagnostic Program - The Proiect Portfolio Management
Diagnostic Program is a low effort, high impact program designed to help proiect owners assess

and improve their PPM practices. Gather and report on all aspects of your PPM environment in
order to understand where you stand and how you can improve.

For over 20 years, Info-Tech has provided IT teams with practical advice that helps make measurable
improvement. Since launchins our svstematic program to improve IT performance in 2013. Info-Tech
members have dramatically outperformed their peers by delivering superior levels of business
satisfaction.

a

a

a

an.r

t-::tt:1,

1-r

.P

L

t!

,.-

=I

4

84Vo

,8%

?4%

Pagel20

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-19M

i -b -;.-,r iv1e ,r' iri'r.
gonsist€ntly D€liver Superior

Bu$incsf, SatiBfaction

Eo/a 'I3o/o

:1ij.t .)t:i i, l]:15 ): )1t'j



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Tech Research

FOR THE PROVISION OF I

TERM

ppgg; September 1,2019 Tg August 31,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9

ERVICES

08t07t2018



Attachment B
to Standard County Contract No. 113

Insurance Requirements for IT Vendor Services

IT Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Vendor, its agents, representatives, or employees.
Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance claims arising out
of their services and including, but not limited to loss, damage, theft or other misuse of data,
infringement of intellectual property, invasion of privacy and breach of data.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

l. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01
covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less
than $1,000,000 per occuffence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04)
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering,
Code I (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(Not required if consultant provides written verffication it has no employees)

4. Cyber Liability lnsurance, with limits not less than $2,000,000 per occunence or
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the
duties and obligations as is undertaken by Vendor in this agreement and shall include,
but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including
but not limited to infringement ofcopyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion ofprivacy
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information,
release of private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and
network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well
as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits
sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Vendor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
aboveo the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the
specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the County.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Page I of3



Additional Insured Status
The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or equipment

furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be

provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as

ISO Form CG 20 l0 I I 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; agd CG 20

37 forms if later revisions used).

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Vendor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the County,

its offrcers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained

by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Vendor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except

with notice to the County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Vendor hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of
said Vendor may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of any loss under such

insurance. Vendor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the County has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Sey-1nt ur"d Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County. The County may

require the Vendor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,

or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named

insured or County.

A ccept ab ility of In s ur er s
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current
A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least

live (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made
policy form with a Retroactive Date pior to the contract effective date, the Vendor
must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of ftve (5/ years after

completion of contract work.

Page2 of3



VeriJication of Coverage
vendor shall furnish the county with orieinal certificates of Insurance
including all required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the
applicable policy laneuaee effecting coverap required by this clause) and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the cGL policv listine
all policy endorsements to county before work begins. However, failure to
obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive
the vendor's obligation to provide them. The county reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies,
including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Vendor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and vendor shall ensure that
county is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk,
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Page 3 of3



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:   
 
RE:  CDA Matching Grant Application 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A.      Approve Resolution No. 2019-34, authorizing the filing of an application for a CDA matching grant for 
“Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport” in the amount of $87,835.50; 
B.      Authorize acceptance of the allocation of said state AIP matching funds for the project;
C.      Authorize execution of said AIP Matching Grant Agreement for this project; and,
D.      Authorize the Public Works Director to sign any documents required to apply for and accept subject funds 
of behalf of the County of Inyo.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board authorized the advertising of the Project “Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death 
Valley Airport” on June 11, 2019. 
The Project construction, construction management/inspection, and county administrative costs are ninety 
percent (90% - $1,756,710) reimbursable by the forthcoming FAA AIP Grant. 

After the FAA Grant Agreement is in place, the County can apply for a Caltrans Division of Aeronautics (CDA) 
matching grant, which will fund five percent (5% - $87,835.50) of the FAA Grant Agreement amount (which is four 
and one-half percent (4.5%) of the entire Project). The Public Works Department is preparing the application for 
the CDA AIP Matching Grant for the Project. The County must pay the remainder of the Project costs, which is 
five and one-half percent (5.5% - $107,354.50) of the entire Project. 
The state requires a resolution of the Board of Supervisors authorizing the submittal of the application, 
acceptance of an allocation of CDA AIP matching funds, and execution of the CDA AIP Matching Grant 
Agreement for the project. In order to expedite processing of the matching grant agreement, the resolution also 
authorizes the Public Works Director to execute the grant agreement. Expediting the processing of the grant 
agreement is beneficial because State regulations prohibit the DOT from issuing a grant on a project once 
construction has started. A resolution in the form recommended by the Division of Aeronautics has been 
prepared and is attached for Board approval. After the resolution is approved, the Public Works Department will 
submit the application to the State Division of Aeronautics. The CDA Matching Grant Application submittal must 
also include a copy of the executed FAA Grant Agreement. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Approval the application for a CDA Matching Grant for design - August 28, 2018



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Approval of Plans and Specification, and acceptance of the forthcoming FAA grant - June 11, 2019
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the resolution and authorize the Public Works Director to sign the grant 
agreement.  If the resolution and authorization to sign is not approved, the CDA will not accept the county’s 
application for CDA matching funds.  This is not recommended, because the county would have to fund the entire 
match of up to 10% for the project total.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
FAA
California Division of Aeronautics
 
FINANCING:
The FAA Grant No. 03-06-0126-019-2019 will fund up to 90 percent (maximum - $1,756,710) of the funds for this 
project. If the CDA AIP matching grant is approved, up to an additional 5.0 percent of the FAA grant amount 
($87,835.50) will be provided by the state. The CAO recommendation for the 19/20 budget includes using 
Geothermal Funds for the County match, which will be 5.5% of the total project costs. The FAA and CDA grants 
require reimbursement to local agencies upon submittal of progress invoices for expenditures actually made.  
The project revenue and expenses will be housed in budget unit 150504, Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport 
Pavement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Matching Grant Resolution



RESOLUTION #2019 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATIONS, ACCEPTING ALLOCATION OF 
FUNDS, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF GRANT AGREEMENTS WITH THE 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR AN AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (AIP) MATCHING GRANT 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo and the Federal Aviation Administration are parties to federal Airport 
Improvement Program (AIP) Grant 3-06-0126-014-2019 for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone 
Pine/Death Valley Airport; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation, pursuant to the Public Utilities Code section 21683.1, 
provides grants of up to 5.0% of Federal Aviation Administration grants to airports; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation requires the Board of Supervisors to adopt a resolution 
authorizing the submission of the application for the AIP Matching grant.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California: 

1. Authorizes filing the application for the state AIP Matching Grant for this project;
2. Authorizes accepting the allocation of state AIP matching funds for the project;
3. Authorizes execution of the AIP Matching Grant Agreement for this project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo does hereby authorize 
Public Works Director Michael Errante to sign any documents required to apply for and accept these subject 
funds on behalf of the County of Inyo.

I hereby certify the foregoing resolution was introduced and read at the regular meeting of the County Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo on the 27th day of August, 2019, and the resolution was duly adopted at said 
meeting by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:

Clint Quilter, Clerk

by 
Assistant Clerk to the Board



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Steve Karamitros 
 
RE:  Presentation of draft Olancha Cartago Corridor Study  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board hear a presentation from Alta Planning + Design on the draft Olancha Cartago Corridor Study, 
which is being completed using SB1 funding administrated by Caltrans.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On December 15, 2017, Inyo County was awarded an SB-1 Sustainable Communities Grant, administered by 
Caltrans. On May 11, 2018, the Planning Department was notified by Caltrans that it could proceed with work on 
the proposed project. The study is largely a response to the Caltrans Olancha/Cartago 4-lane Project, which will 
redirect portions of the Highway 395 and bypass the communities of Olancha & Cartago. This project is not 
undergoing its own environmental study. Today, we will hear a presentation from James Powell, the corridor 
study's Project Manager from Alta, on the Draft Corridor Plan. The presentation includes the feedback from two 
community workshops, which were held November 1, 2018 & February 21, 2019.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The aim of this Study is to analyze the ways in which the communities of Olancha and Cartago can re-brand and 
remake themselves following the loss of traffic resulting from the realignment of US 395. This includes looking at 
ways to integrate these communities with local outdoor activities so that they become destinations for those 
interested in outdoor recreation. The Study also looks at the design of future economic development in 
commercial zones and how they can be integrated, through sustainable multi-modal transportation, with areas 
zoned for residential use along the corridor. It looks for opportunities for gateway and signage features that will 
help provide an identity to the corridor, and serve as a draw for visitors. Again, this will incorporate accessibility to 
local roads, trailheads, and other recreational opportunities, as well as ways to maximize the cultural and 
historical heritage in the area. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Transportation, Restricted Grant Agreement
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

This project is funded through an SB-1 Sustainable Communities Grant.
This project includes a 11.5% match from the local agency, which is being met using staff time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft Study Presentation



Olancha Cartago Corridor Study

Inyo County Planning Department



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

OVERVIEW

• Grant-Funded by Caltrans: 
California Sustainable 
Planning Grant 

• Response to the Caltrans 
Olancha Cartago 4 Lane 
Project 

• 8 miles of 395, from 
Cartago to Summit Creek

• North of HWY 190 
transfers to county

• South of HWY 190 to 
become 190 South and 
remain with Caltrans



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

• Expand active transportation 
options

• Connect to nearby 
recreational assets

• 

• 
speeds

• Brand the corridor as a 
destination

• Promote economic growth

• Increase tourism

GOALS

01  
Approach



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

• Businesses
Ranch House Cafe (recently closed), 
Gus’ Fresh Jerky Stand, Mobil, 
Olancha Cafe, Motels, Crystal Geyser 

• Nearby Art and Historic Sites 
Olancha Sculpture Garden, Metabolic 
Studios at PPG, Cottonwood Creek 
Charcoal Kilns, Dirty Socks Hot 
Springs, Owens Lake Land Art 

• Recreation and Nature
Cartago Wildlife Area, Coso 
Wilderness Area,  Haiwee Reservoir 
(if reopened), Owens Lake Trails, 
Olancha Dunes, Olancha  
Peak trails

EXISTING CONDITIONS

02  
Analysis + Outreach

P o s t  O ffi c e

C r y s t a l  G e y s e r

eeO ffiO ffi cO ffi c eO ffi c esP oP ts ts to so sPP oP oPPPPPP ss tssoP oPPP ssssssso so sPP oP o eeeet
 O l d  G a s  S t a t i o n

O l a n c h a  D u n e s

M o b i l  G a s
S t a t i o n

R u s t i c  O a s i s
M o t e l

V a c a n t  G a s  S t a t i o n V a c a n t  C o m m e r c i a l  S p a c e

O l a n c h a  F i r e  S t a t i o n

H a i w e e
R e s e r v o i r

C a r t a g o  W i l d l i f e  A r e a

T O  

L O N E  

P I N E

T O  

D E A T H

V A L L E Y

T O  

L O S

A N G E L E S

D i r t y  S o c k s
H o t  S p r i n g s

D i r t y  S o c k s
T r a i l h e a d

V a c a n t
C o m m e r c i a l

S p a c e

T r a i l h e a d  To  H i g h  S i e r r a

G a s S t a t i o nG a s S t a t i o nt aaa ss SS tt

O l a n c h a
S c u l p t u r e

G a r d e n

VVV

R a n c h
H o u s e  C a f e

R u s t i c O a s i sR u s t i c O a s i ssssc ssssii

O l a n c h a  R V
A n d  M o b i l e  P a r k

O l a n c h a R Va Vn V

O l a n c h a  R a n c h
M o t e l  A n d  C a b i n s

V a c a n t  H o t e l  &  
L e m o n  B u i l i d n g

N o .  7 9 6  F a r l e y ' s  
O l a n c h a  M i l l  S i t el a n c h a M i l l S i t eOO l hO h aa
G u s ’ s  F r e s h  J e r k e y

O l a n c h a

C a r t a g o

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

395

395

190

Walker Creek Road

Sage Flats Road

Haiwee Road

Fall Road

C
actus Flats R

oad

Summit C
reek

Olanch
a Creek

Cartago Creek

W
al

ke
r C

re
ek

Miles
0 0.5 1 2

Project Area

395 Realignment

Parcels

Miles
0 0.5 1 2

KEY DESTINATIONS
MAP



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

• Geography

• Hydrology

• Development History

• Property Ownership and Zoning

• Demographics

• Existing Relevant Plans 

• Existing Road Conditions

• County Roads 

• 

CONTEXT

02  
Analysis + Outreach

395

395

WWalWW kkll r r CCCCeeeekk rrCCCC eekeeeee

FlFlllllggge Fe FFllgg FlSSSaSaSagSagage Fe Fe FSSaage F aaaaaalllllll tsttsts oots Rts Rtsts RoRoRRRoRoRoRooott RoRo ddoaoaddtsts Rootttsts

H iHaiHHaHHaHa www
oadoadoadoad

ee Ree Roee Ro

RRRRR
oa

R
oa

R
oa

R
ooaoaoaoaddddaaadddaaaadddddaaaddd

RRRRR
oa

R
oa

R
o

R
oaoooa

RRRR
o

R
oaooa

Fall Road

Brady Road

Summit C
reek

Olanch
a Creek

Cartago Creek

W
al

ke
r C

re
ek

Private

Inyo County

LADWP

State of California

USFS

BLM

Railroads

Project Area

190

k Roadadoadadoad

CC
a

C
a

C
a

C
ac

C
ac

C
act

s
F

uuss
F

s
F

us
FlFlFlFlFlF

ctutus
ctutusussuss

aaaaa
FlFllFllll

ttsss s RRR
o

R
o

s
R

Bradyadyrr

itt CCCCCrreeeerrrr eeekk

Miles
0 0.5 1 2



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

• Opportunities
Access to natural features and scenery

Buildings with potential for adaptive 
reuse 

Death Valley junction

• Constraints 

realignment

Few existing major tourist draws

OPPORTUNITIES + 
CONSTRAINTS

02  
Analysis + Outreach

O l a n c h a  
D u n e s

O l a n c h a  
S c u l p t u r e

G a r d e n

C a r t a g o
W i l d l i f e

A r e a

C r y s t a l
G e y s e r

B o t t l i n g
P l a n t

D i r t y
S o c k s
H o t  

S P r i n g s

D i r t y  S o c k s
T r a i l h e a d

O w e n s
L a k e

H a i w e e
R e s e r v o i r

T O  

L O N E  

P I N E

( 2 0  M i l e s )

T O  

D E A T H

V A L L E Y

( 6 0  M i l e s )

T O  

L O S

A N G E L E S

( 1 8 0  M i l e s )

T O  

D I A Z  L A K E

( 1 7  M i l e s )

T O  

C O S O  J U N C T I O N

R E S T  S T O P

( 1 3  M i l e s )

T O  

R I D G E C R E S T

( 5 0  M i l e s )

395

395

190

2 4 0 ’ -  
2 6 0 ’

4 0 0 ’

1 0 0 ’ -  
1 1 0 ’

1 0 0 ’ -  
1 1 0 ’

1 0 0 ’

5 0 ’

1 2 5 ’

9 0 ’

2 0 0 ’

7 0 ’ -  
8 4 ’

Cartago Commercial Core

Signage Opportunity

Signage Opportunity

Road Access to Owens Lake

Major Highway Junction; 
Gateway Opportunity

Cattle Drive Staging

Tree Lined Corridor

Vacant Businesses

Vacant Businesses

Road to become CA-190 south 
of existing highway junction.

Olancha Residential Zone

Farley’s Olancha Mill Site

Highway to become 
County Road north of 
190 Junction

Olancha Commercial Core

Road Access to Olancha Dunes

Residential Zone

Potential Future 
Recreational Access

Cartago Residential Zone

Cartago Boat Landing

Olancha Hotel Zone

Aqueduct Restricts 
Access to Mountains

Unknown Highway 
Connection Status

Limited service area 

Limited service area 

Residents cut off from 
Cartago by new 
highway alignment.

Large Volume of Truck 
Traffic Around Crystal 
Geyser

Road Access to High Sierra

Gateway Opportunity

Signage Opportunity

Gateway Opportunity

Road Access to High Sierra

Trailhead to High Sierra

Realigned Highway 395

Trailhead to 
High Sierra

Trailhead to 
High Sierra

Walker Creek Road

Sage Flats Road

Haiwee Road

Brady Road

Fall Road

C
actus Flats R

oad

Sum
m

it Creek

Olancha Creek

Cartago Creek

W
al

ke
r C

re
ek

Project Area

Opportunity

ROW Width

Miles
0 0.5 1 2

Constraint

##

OPPORTUNITIES AND 
CONSTRAINTS MAP



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

• Community  
Workshop #1

November 2018

• Community  
Workshop #2 

February 2019

• Community  
Workshop #3

August 2019

OUTREACH

02  
Analysis + Outreach



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

DESIGN TOOLKIT + 
PRECEDENTS

03  
Concept Plan

• RUNS: 
Active 
Transportation, 
Safety, and 

Elements



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

DESIGN TOOLKIT + 
PRECEDENTS

03  
Concept Plan

• RIFFLES: 
Activity Areas



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

DESIGN TOOLKIT + 
PRECEDENTS

03  
Concept Plan

• POOLS: 
Moments of Pause  
and Placemaking



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

BRANDING

03  
Concept Plan

• Making the 
Corridor 
Recognizable 

Encourage visitors 
and development



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

1’

2’

3’

4’

5’

6’

7’

8’

9’

Turn ConfirmationTrail Marker Map Kiosk
with shade structure

Information Kiosk Trailhead Marker
sidefrontsidefront

Segment 
Name

Rules & 
Regulations
Trail Hours: Dawn to Dusk
For Emergency Assistance Call 911
Please Carry Out All Waste

You 
are 

here

Destination
One

Destination
Two

Destination
Three

Destination
Four

Destination
Five

Destination
Six4

mi

1
2

Segment 
Name

Rules & 
Regulations
Trail Hours: Dawn to Dusk
For Emergency Assistance Call 911
Please Carry Out All Waste

Local Attractions

WAYFINDING

03  
Concept Plan

• Builds upon branding

• Educates and directs users 
to trails and educational 
opportunities



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

CONCEPT ZONES

03  
Concept Plan

• Three major zones 
Cartago

190 Junction

Art + Haiwee



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

NORTHERN SEGMENT: 
CARTAGO

03  
Concept Plan

 Los A
n geles A

queduct

Braley Creek

       C
artago   Creek

R
EA

LI
G

N
ED

 H
W

Y 
39

5

LAKE STREET

Cartago

395

Cartago 
Wildlife Area

Crystal 
Geyser

Bottling
Plant

Cartago
Commercial 

Core

   
   

   
 P

O
TE

N
TI

A
L 

O
W

EN
S 

VA
LL

EY
 R

AI
L 

TR
A

IL

A

B
25’ 14’ 12 14’ 12’ VARIES

Travel Lane Center Turn Lane Travel Lane Planted
Buff er

Shared Use Path Planted
Buff er

Linear Park + 
Ammenities

Multi-Use Trail

25’ 40’ 45’

11’ MIN 10’ MIN 11’ MIN

5’ MIN.5’ MIN. 8’ MIN.

North

South

Mid

A

C

E

B

D

• Highway services

• Visitor center/trailheads

• Where the new 395 
meets old 395



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

MIDDLE SEGMENT: 
190 JUNCTION

03  
Concept Plan

 

        Los A ngeles Aqueduct

ncha   Creek

WALKER CREEK ROAD

FALL ROAD

SH
O

P ST

O
LD

 STATE H
W

Y

W
ILLIA

M
S R

D

SCHOOL ST

LACEY LN

REALIGNED HW
Y 395

OLANCHA LN

Olancha

395

190

Olancha 
Sculpture 

Garden

Cattle 
Drive

Staging
                                                                                                                     PO

TEN
TIAL O

W
EN

S VALLEY RAIL TRAIL

                                                                                                                     PO
TEN

TIAL O
W

EN
S VALLEY RAIL TRAIL

C

D
12’ 11’ 4’12’

Center Turn LaneTravel Lane Buff erShared Use Path Bike LanePlanted
Buff er

Multi-Use Trail

35’ 40’ 20’

12’5’ MIN.

Planted
Buff er

20’

Travel Lane

11’ MIN11’ MIN 10’ MIN
5’ MIN. 6’ MIN.8’ MIN.

North

South

Mid

A

C

E

B

D

• Gateway to Death 
Valley

• Services and trails



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

SOUTHERN SEGMENT: 
ART + HAIWEE

03  
Concept Plan

NortNorthh
HaiwHaiwHaiwHaiwee 

RRRReservoir

 Los A
ngeles Aqu educt

WALKER CREEK ROAD

REALIGNED HW
Y 395

N HAIWEE ROAD

                                                                               C
ACTUS FLATS RO

A
D

395

Olancha 
Sculpture 

Garden

E

33’

Bike
 Lane

Buff er Travel Lane Travel Lane Buff er Bike
 Lane

2’ 12’ 12’ 2’

40’ 14’

11’ MIN 11’ MIN

6’ MIN. 6’ MIN.

North

South

Mid

A

C

E

B

D

• Open roadway • Motels, trails, 
large-scale art



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

TRAFFIC + SAFETY

03  
Concept Plan

• 

• Intersection 
Treatments

• Trail and Path 
Design

• Trail Amenities

• Materials

•  
and Signage



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

IMPLEMENTATION + 
PHASING

04  
Implementation and Phasing

• Coordination + 
Partnerships

• Funding 
Opportunities

• Business 
Incentives

• Project Phasing

• Cost Estimates



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

NEXT STEPS

• Finalize Study

partnerships, and 
cost estimate 
sections

• Further Outreach
Open House on 
August 29

Incorporate 
comments

Additional 
presentations 
to Planning 
Commision, Board 
of Supervisors, and 
Open House in late 
fall



OLANCHA CARTAGO CORRIDOR STUDY
Prepared by Alta Planning + Design

QUESTIONS + 
CONTACT INFO

Contact: 

Steven Karamitros 
Inyo County Planning Department 
760-878-0268 
skaramitros@inyocounty.us

James Powell, PLA, ASLA 
Alta Planning + Design 
213-437-3336 
jamespowell@altaplanning.com



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Cathreen Richards 
 
RE:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) receive a presentation by Planning Department staff regarding a Senate Bill 2 (SB2) grant 
application and a request for direction from the Board to submit the grant application; and B) approve Resolution 
No. 2019-35, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing 
Application for, and Receipt of, SB 2 Planning Grant Funds," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is currently faced with a lack of "family-wage" and/or "affordable" housing choices. There are a number of factors that contribute 
to this issue including:
             - A lack of available private property;
             - Difficulties in the provision of infrastructure and services;
            - No interest from builders to provide "family-wage" and/or "affordable" 
               housing choices;
            - State subdivision regulations that prohibit subdivision of areas outside 
               Community Service District (Fire) Boundaries; and
            - Outdated Zoning

Funding
This year's SB2 funding is being directed at planning assistance that helps to achieve affordable housing goals. This grant funding will be 
allocated by an "over the counter" non-competitive means to all eligible jurisdictions in the State. The application for this funding is out and is 
due by November 30, 2019. Inyo County is considered a 'small county' with regard to the SB2 funding allocations, and therefore, is entitled to 
$160,000.

The State's Priority Policy Areas
Along with the funding opportunity the State has also provided a list of priority policy areas. Jurisdictions that choose to apply under a priority 
policy area will have an easier and faster grant application process. Priority Policy Areas include:
            - Rezone to permit by right;
            - Objective design and development standards;
            - Specific plans or form based codes coupled with CEQA Streamlining;
            - Accessory dwelling units or other innovative building strategies;
            - Expedited processing; and
            - Housing related infrastructure financing and fee reduction strategies.
Eligible projects include, but are not limited to:
            - Targeted General Plan updates;
            - Community plans and specific plans;
            - Zoning updates; and
            - Environmental analysis that eliminates the need for project specific  
               review.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Projects undertaken with this grant funding are also covered for necessary CEQA review.

Proposed Project
The grant application proposes to hire a consultant to work with Planning Department staff to conduct a thorough vacant lands inventory and 
zoning review of properties located throughout the County. This information will be used to identify land that might be appropriate for zone 
changes to promote affordable housing opportunities primarily by increasing the allowable residential density. This will likely include increasing 
the amount of multi-family zoning in the County; lowering some of the minimum lot size requirements and additional zoning areas with 
principal permitting for mobile home parks. The review of the County's current zoning will also focus on commercial zones for opportunities for 
infill (residential) development. Areas near public transportation and other services might also be identified for zone changes. A review of the 
code language addressing accessory dwelling units will also be reviewed for infill opportunities. A primary component of this work will include 
public outreach meetings and communication with property owners.

Once land for zone changes and updates to current zoning for infill opportunities are identified, a CEQA evaluation (most likely an EIR) will be 
conducted on each property and cumulatively, proposed for a zone change and on changes to the current zoning ordinance for infill 
opportunities. This can result in changes to single-family and open space designations to multi-family, and changes to outright allow for mobile 
home parks, as well as allow for multi-family residential uses in certain commercial zones without requiring discretionary approval. Any 
changes to the County's General Plan designations that might be necessary for consistency with the changes to the zoning will also be 
conducted. Changes to the General Plan designations will be necessary with regard to allowed density by district and the potential, proposed, 
up-zoning.

Once the CEQA evaluation is completed, the Draft zone changes and General Plan Amendments will be taken to the Planning Commission 
and Board of Supervisors for adoption. The updates will result in permitting by right for more multi-family housing and overall residential 
density. This qualifies as a State Priority Policy Area.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Planning staff introduced the SB2 Planning Grant to the Board at its May 28, 2019 meeting and received 
direction to pursue the grant application. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The County could not apply for the SB2 grant funding. This is not recommended as this funding can provide the means to evaluate and 
implement changes in policy and regulation regarding affordable housing that the County does not otherwise have. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Housing and Development, Inyo County Public Works and Environmental Health Departments, and other outside 
agencies and non-profit organizations that work in affordable housing projects and policy.
 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. SB2 Resolution
2. 2019-SB-2-Planning-Grants-Application



RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, SB 2 PLANNING 

GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development 

(Department) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated March 28, 2019, for its 

Planning Grants Program (PGP)  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo desires to submit a project 

application for the PGP program to accelerate the production of housing and will submit a 2019 

PGP grant application as described in the Planning Grants Program NOFA and SB 2 Planning 

Grants Program Guidelines released by the Department for the PGP Program  

WHEREAS, the Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under the SB 2 Planning 

Grants Program from the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund for assistance to Counties (as 

described in Health and Safety Code section 50470 et seq. (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017 (SB 2)) 

related to the PGP Program.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO 

RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1. The Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo is hereby authorized and directed to 

apply for and submit to the Department the 2019 Planning Grants Program application in the 

amount of $160,000.  

SECTION 2. In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the Department, 

the County Planning Director, Cathreen Richards is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver 

a State of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $160,000, and any and 

all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the PGP 

grant, the County’s obligations related thereto, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the 

“PGP Grant Documents”).  

SECTION 3. The County shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the Standard 

Agreement, the SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and any applicable PGP guidelines 

published by the Department. Funds are to be used for allowable expenditures as specifically 

identified in the Standard Agreement. The application in full is incorporated as part of the 

Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines 

represented in the application will be enforceable through the executed Standard Agreement. The 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses in the manner 

presented in the application as approved by the Department and in accordance with the Planning 



Grants NOFA, the Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants Program 

Application.  

SECTION 4. The County Planning Director, Cathreen Richards is authorized to execute the 

County of Inyo Planning Grants Program application, the PGP Grant Documents, and any 

amendments thereto, on behalf of the County as required by the Department for receipt of the 

PGP Grant.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED the 27
th

 day of August, 2019 by the Board of Supervisors of the 

County of Inyo by the following vote:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

                                                           _______________________________________________ 

                                                           Rick Pucci Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST:  Clint G. Quilter 

                  Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Assistant Clerk of the Board  

 

 

 

 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Program Application 

State of California 

Governor Gavin Newsom 

Alexis Podesta, Secretary 

Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

Ben Metcalf, Director 

Department of Housing and Community Development 

2020 West El Camino, Suite 500 

Sacramento, CA 95833 

Website: http://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/planning-

grants.shtml  

Email: sb2planninggrant@hcd.ca.gov

March 28, 2019

Revised May 9, 2019 



CA-HCD SB 2 PGP  Page 2 of 15  2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

SB 2 Planning Grants Application 

Planning Grants Program Application Packaging Instructions 

The applicant is applying to the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (Department) for a grant authorized underneath the Planning Grants 
Program (PGP) provisions of SB 2 (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017). The PGP program 
is intended for the preparation, adoption, and implementation of plans that streamline 
housing approvals and accelerate housing production. Please refer to the SB 2 
Planning Grants Program Guidelines and Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 
detailed information on eligible activities, applicants, and awards. If you have questions 
regarding this application or the PGP, email sb2planninggrant@hcd.ca.gov.  

If approved for funding, this grant application will be a part of your Standard Agreement 
with the Department. In order to be considered for funding, all sections of this application, 
including attachments and exhibits if required, must be complete and accurate.  

Pursuant to Section X of the NOFA, all applicants must submit a complete, signed,
original application package and an electronic copy on CD or USB flash drive 
containing the following documentation, in the order listed below, to the Department by 
the specified due date in the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) in order to be 
considered for award: 

1) A complete, signed, original application (the Department will only accept this fillable
pdf as the application) with the following attachments:

a. Attachment 1: State and Other Planning Priorities (All applicants must submit
this form to self-certify compliance)

b. Attachment 2: Nexus to Accelerating Housing Production - NOTE: if the
applicant is proposing only Priority Policy Areas (PPA), as defined in section VIII,
subsection (3) of the NOFA, do not fill out Attachment 2. However, if the applicant
is proposing to fund PPAs AND other activities that are not considered PPAs, the
application must demonstrate how these other activities have a nexus to
accelerating housing production by filling out Attachment 2 of this application.

2) A fully executed resolution authorizing application for, and receipt of, PGP funds (see
Attachment 3: Sample Resolution).

3) A fully executed Government Agency Taxpayer ID Form (available as a download
from the SB 2 Planning Grants webpage at http://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-
funding/active-funding/planning-grants.shtml).

4) If the applicant is partnering with another local government or other entity pursuant to
Article II, Section 200 of the SB 2 Planning Grant Program Guidelines (the
“Guidelines”), include a copy of the legally binding agreement.

NOTE: All local governments must submit a separate, signed application package,
notwithstanding whether it will partner with another form of government or entity. Only
one application per locality will be accepted by the Department. Joint applications are
not allowed.



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 3 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

A.  Applicant Information 
 

Pursuant to Article II, Section 200 of the Guidelines, local governments may partner through legally binding 
agreements with other forms of governments or entities. However, all local governments must submit separate, 
signed application packages that identify their respective responsibilities and deliverables, even if partnering with 
other entities. 
 

Is the applicant partnering with another eligible local government entity? 

 *Yes *If Yes, the application package must include a fully executed copy of the legally binding 
agreement. Provide the partners’ name(s) and type(s) below for reference only.    No 

 

Complete the following Applicant information 

Applicant’s Name  

Applicant’s Agency Type  

Applicant’s Mailing Address  

City  

State California Zip Code  

County  

Website  

Authorized Representative Name  

Authorized Representative Title  

Phone  Fax  

Email  

Contact Person Name  

Contact Person Title  

Phone  Fax  

Email  

Partner(s) Name (if applicable)  

Partner Agency Type  

Partner(s) Name (if applicable)  

Partner Agency Type  

Proposed Grant Amount $  
 

B.  Applicant Certification 

As the official designated by the governing body, I hereby certify that if approved by HCD for funding through the 

Planning Grants Program (PGP), the ___________________________________________ assumes the 

responsibilities specified in the 2019 Notice of Funding Availability and PGP guidelines, and certifies that the 

information, statements, and other contents contained in this application are true and correct. 

Signature: ____________________________  Name:_____________________________ 
 
 

Date: _______________ Title: ______________________________________________ 

 
 
 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 4 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

C.  Threshold Requirements 

Pursuant to Section 201(a) through (d) of the Guidelines, all applicants must meet the following threshold criteria 

in items 1-4 below to be eligible for an award. 
 

1. Does the applicant have an adopted housing element found to be in substantial compliance by the 
Department on or before the date of the applicant’s submission of their SB 2 Planning Grant application?  

 Yes Date of HCD Review Letter: __________ 

 No  

 
The Applicant requests HCD to consider housing element compliance threshold as met due to significant 
progress achieved in meeting housing element requirements. 

 

2. Has the applicant submitted to the Department the Annual Progress Report (APR) for the current or 
prior year on or before the date of submission of their SB 2 Planning Grant application? 

 Yes APR Date Submitted 

  2017 CY Report  

    2018 CY Report  

 No  
 

3. Is the applicant utilizing one of the Priority Policy Areas listed below (as defined in section VIII, 
subsection (3) of the NOFA)?  

 
 
 
 

*Yes 

*If the applicant is proposing only Priority Policy Areas, do not fill out Attachment 2. However, if 
the applicant is proposing to fund PPAs AND other activities that are not considered PPAs, the 
application must demonstrate how these other activities have a nexus to accelerating housing 
production by filling out Attachment 2 of this application. 

 

Rezone to permit 
by-right 

Objective design 
and development 

standards 

Specific Plans or 
form based codes 

coupled with 
CEQA 

streamlining 

Accessory 
Dwelling Units or 

other low-cost 
building strategies 

Expedited 
processing 

Housing related 
infrastructure 

financing and fee 
reduction 
strategies 

       

 
 

No 

If an applicant is not proposing Priority Policy Areas, the application must include an explanation 
and document the plans or processes’ nexus and impact on accelerating housing production based 
on a reasonable and verifiable methodology and must submit Attachment 2 in the Application 
pursuant to section VIII, subsection (3) of the NOFA. 

 

 
The applicant is proposing PPAs and other activities not considered PPAs and is demonstrating how these 
activities have a nexus to accelerating housing production by submitting Attachment 2. 
 
 

4. Does the applicant demonstrate that the locality is consistent with State 
Planning or Other Priorities, as certified in Attachment 1? 

Yes  *No  

 

*If No, consistency may be demonstrated through activities (not necessarily proposed for SB 2 funding) that were 
completed within the last five years, as certified in Attachment 1. 
 

 

5. Is a completed and signed resolution included with the application package?  
See Attachment 3, “Sample Resolution” 

 Yes 
 

No 
 

 

 

 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP  Page 5 of 15  2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

D. Proposed Activities Checklist (Section VI, items (1) through (17) of the NOFA)

Check all activities the locality is undertaking for their PGP efforts below. Activities must match Section E. Project 

Description, and Section F. Timeline and Budget. 

1 
updates to general plans, community plans, specific plans, local planning related to implementation 
of sustainable communities strategies, or local coastal plans 

2 updates to zoning ordinances 

3 environmental analyses that eliminate the need for project-specific review 

4 local process improvements that improve and expedite local planning 

5 
a smaller geography with a significant impact on housing production including an overlay district, 
project level specific plan or development standards modifications proposed for significant areas of 
a locality, such as corridors, downtown or priority growth areas 

6 
the creation or enhancement of a housing sustainability district pursuant to AB 73 (Chapter 371, 
Statutes of 2017) 

7 workforce housing opportunity zone pursuant to SB 540 (Chapter 369, Statutes of 2017) 

8 
zoning for by-right supportive housing, pursuant to Government Code section 65651 (Chapter 753, 
Statutes of 2018) 

9 
zoning incentives for housing for persons with special needs, including persons with developmental 
disabilities 

10 
rezoning to meet requirements pursuant to Government Code Section 65583.2(c) and other rezoning 
efforts to facilitate supply and affordability 

11 
rezoning for multifamily housing in high resource areas (according to Tax Credit Allocation 
Committee/Housing Community Development Opportunity Area Maps) 

12 pre-approved architectural and site plans 

13 regional housing trust fund plans 

14 funding plans for SB 2 Year 2 going forward

15 infrastructure financing plans 

16 
environmental hazard assessments; data collection on permit tracking; feasibility studies, site 
analysis, or other background studies that are ancillary and part of a proposed activity with a nexus 
to accelerating housing production 

17 Other activities demonstrating a nexus to accelerating housing production 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 6 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

E.  Project Description 

Provide a description of the project and the scope of work to be performed below. Use Appendix A for additional 
information if necessary. Note: If partnering with another local government or entity, be sure to clarify the 
responsibilities and deliverables of your locality pursuant to such partnership.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 7 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

F. Project Timeline and Budget 

Project Goal(s) 
 
 

Objective Responsible Party Est. Cost Begin End Deliverable *PPA Notes 

 
 

     
 

 

 
 

     
 

 

 
 

     
 

 

 
 

     
 

 

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
 

Total Est. Cost $ 
     

*Priority Policy Area (PPA) 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 8 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

G.  Legislative Information 

District # Legislator Name  

Federal 
Congressional 

District 

  

  

  

   

  

  

State Assembly 
District 

  

  

  

  

  

  

State Senate 
District 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Applicants can find their respective State Senate representatives at https://www.senate.ca.gov/, 

and their respective State Assembly representatives at https://www.assembly.ca.gov/.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 9 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

Attachment 1: State and Other Planning Priorities Certification (Page 1 of 3) 
 

Pursuant to Section 201(d) of the Guidelines, all applicants must demonstrate that the locality is consistent with 

State Planning or Other Planning Priorities by certifying that at least one activity was completed in 1) State 

Planning Priorities (i.e., Infill and Equity, Resource Protection, Efficient Development Patterns) or 2) Other 

Planning Priorities (i.e., Affordability, Conservation, or Climate Change). Consistency may be demonstrated 

through activities (not necessarily proposed for SB 2 funding) that were completed within the last five years.   

 

Complete the following self-certification by selecting one or more of the policy areas in the following tables by 

inserting the date completed for each applicable action, briefly describing the action taken, and certifying. 

 

State Planning Priorities 
Date Completed Brief Description of the Action Taken 

Promote Infill and Equity 

Rehabilitating, maintaining, and improving existing infrastructure that supports infill development and 
appropriate reuse and redevelopment of previously developed, underutilized land that is presently served by 
transit, streets, water, sewer, and other essential services, particularly in underserved areas. 

 
 

 
 

 

Seek or utilize funding or support strategies to facilitate opportunities for infill development. 

 
 

 
 

 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

 
 

 
 
 

Promote Resource Protection 

Protecting, preserving, and enhancing the state’s most valuable natural resources, including working 
landscapes such as farm, range, and forest lands; natural lands such as wetlands, watersheds, wildlife habitats, 
and other wildlands; recreation lands such as parks, trails, greenbelts, and other open space; and landscapes 
with locally unique features and areas identified by the state as deserving special protection. 

 
 

 
 
 

Actively seek a variety of funding opportunities to promote resource protection in underserved communities. 

 
 

 
 
 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

 
 

 
 
 

Encourage Efficient Development Patterns 

Ensuring that any infrastructure associated with development, other than infill development, supports new 
development that does the following: 

(1) Uses land efficiently. 

 
 

 
 
 
 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 10 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

Attachment 1: State and Other Planning Priorities Certification (Page 2 of 3) 

(2) Is built adjacent to existing developed areas to the extent consistent with environmental protection. 

 
 

 
 
 

(3) Is located in an area appropriately planned for growth. 

 
 

 
 
 

(4) Is served by adequate transportation and other essential utilities and services. 

 
 

 
 
 

(5) Minimizes ongoing costs to taxpayers. 

 
 

 
 
 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

 
 

 
 
 

Other Planning Priorities 

Affordability and Housing Choices 

Incentives and other mechanisms beyond State Density Bonus Law to encourage housing with affordability 
terms. 

  
 
 

Efforts beyond state law to promote accessory dwelling units or other strategies to intensify single-family 
neighborhoods with more housing choices and affordability. 

  
 
 

Upzoning or other zoning modifications to promote a variety of housing choices and densities. 

 
 
 
 

Utilizing surplus lands to promote affordable housing choices. 

 
 
 
 

Efforts to address infrastructure deficiencies in disadvantaged communities pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65302.10. 

  
 
 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

  
 
 

 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 11 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

Attachment 1: State and Other Planning Priorities Certification (Page 3 of 3) 

Conservation of Existing Affordable Housing Stock 

Policies, programs or ordinances to conserve stock such as an at-risk preservation ordinance, mobilehome park 
overlay zone, condominium conversion ordinance and acquisition and rehabilitation of market rate housing 
programs. 

 
 

 
 
 

Policies, programs and ordinances to protect and support tenants such as rent stabilization, anti-displacement 
strategies, first right of refusal policies, resources to assist tenant organization and education and “just cause” 
eviction policies. 

 
 

 
 
 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

 
 

 
 
 

Climate Adaptation 

Building standards, zoning and site planning requirements that address flood and fire safety, climate adaptation 
and hazard mitigation. 

 
 

 
 
 

Long-term planning that addresses wildfire, land use for disadvantaged communities, and flood and local hazard 
mitigation. 

 
 

 
 
 

Community engagement that provides information and consultation through a variety of methods such as 
meetings, workshops, and surveys and that focuses on vulnerable populations (e.g., seniors, people with 
disabilities, homeless, etc.). 

 
 

 
 
 

Other (describe how this meets subarea objective) 

 
 

 
 
 

 

State and Other Planning Priorities Certification 
 
I certify under penalty of perjury that all of the information contained in this PGP State Planning and Other 
Planning Priorities certification form (pages 9, 10, and 11 of this application) is true and correct. 
 

Certifying Officials Name: _______________________________________________ 
 

Certifying Official’s Title:________________________________________________ 

 

Certifying Official’s Signature:_____________________________________________ 

 

Certification Date: _____________________________ 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP  Page 12 of 15  2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

Attachment 2: Application Nexus to Accelerating Housing Production 

Fill out Attachment 2 only if the applicant answered “No” to item 3 in Section C or is utilizing Policy 
Priority Areas AND other activities not designated as such. Applicants answering “Yes” to question 3 
in Section C and utilizing ONLY Priority Policy Areas are automatically deemed to demonstrate a nexus 
to accelerating housing production, and do not need to complete this form.  

Pursuant to section VIII, subsection (4) of the NOFA, applicants shall demonstrate how the application includes 
a nexus to accelerating housing production. Please complete the following chart by providing information about 
the current conditions and expected outcomes with respect to the planned activity and housing 
production. Please attach documentation as necessary and see the NOFA for additional details. 
Quantify how the activity accelerates production below,  and use Appendix B to explain the activity 
and its nexus to accelerating housing production.   

Type (Select at least one) *Baseline **Projected ***Difference Notes 

Timing (e.g., reduced number 
of processing days) 

Development cost (e.g., land, 
fees, financing, construction 
costs per unit) 

Approval certainty and 
reduction in discretionary 
review (e.g., prior versus 
proposed standard and level of 
discretion) 

Entitlement streamlining (e.g., 
number of approvals) 

Feasibility of development 

Infrastructure capacity (e.g., 
number of units) 

Impact on housing supply and 
affordability (e.g., number of 
units) 

* Baseline – Current conditions in the jurisdiction
(e.g. 6-month development application review, or existing number of units in a planning area)

**Projected – Expected conditions in the jurisdiction because of the planning grant actions 
(e.g. 2-month development application review) 

***Difference – Potential change resulting from the planning grant actions  
(e.g., 4-month acceleration in permitting, creating a more expedient development process) 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP  Page 13 of 15  2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

Attachment 3: Sample Resolution 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
A RESOLUTION OF THE [CITY COUNCIL/COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS] OF 

___[CITY, COUNTY NAME]___ 
AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, 

SB 2 PLANNING GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community Development (Department) has issued a 
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated March 28, 2019, for its Planning Grants Program (PGP); and 

WHEREAS, the [City Council/County Board of Supervisors] of _____________ (City/County) desires to submit a project 
application for the PGP program to accelerate the production of housing and will submit a 2019 PGP grant application as 
described in the Planning Grants Program NOFA and SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines released by the 
Department for the PGP Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under the SB 2 Planning Grants Program from
the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund for assistance to Counties (as described in Health and Safety Code section 
50470 et seq. (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017 (SB 2)) related to the PGP Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE [CITY COUNCIL/COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS] OF ________________________ 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The [City Council/County Board of Supervisors] is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit to 
the Department the 2019 Planning Grants Program application released March 28, 2019 in the amount of
$__________________. 

SECTION 2. In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the Department, the [insert
designee title, e.g. City Manager, Executive Office, etc ] is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of California

Standard Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $______________________, and any and all other documents 
required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the PGP grant, the [City/County’s] obligations 
related thereto, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the “PGP Grant Documents”). 

SECTION 3. The [City/County] shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the Standard Agreement, the 
SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and any applicable PGP guidelines published by the Department. Funds are 
to be used for allowable expenditures as specifically identified in the Standard Agreement. The application in full is 
incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines 
represented in the application will be enforceable through the executed Standard Agreement. The [City Council/County 
Board of Supervisors] hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses in the manner presented in the application as 
approved by the Department and in accordance with the Planning Grants NOFA, the Planning Grants Program 
Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants Program Application. 

SECTION 4. The [insert the title of City Council/County Board of Supervisors Executive or designee] is authorized to
execute the [City/County] of ___________ Planning Grants Program application, the PGP Grant Documents, and any 

amendments thereto, on behalf of the [City/County] as required by the Department for receipt of the PGP Grant. 

ADOPTED __________________, 2019, by the [City/County] Board of Supervisors of the County of ______________ 

by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
________________________________ County Executive 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ ________________________________ 
County Clerk County Attorney 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP  Page 14 of 15  2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

Appendix A 

Use this area for additional information if necessary. 



SB 2 Planning Grants Application 
 

CA-HCD SB 2 PGP                           Page 15 of 15                 2019 Year-1 Grant Application 

 

Appendix B 

Use this area for additional information if necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:   
 
RE:   Approval and Ratification of Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Tobacco Control Program Allocation Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the Allocation Agreement between the County of Inyo and California 
Department of Public Health for the provision of the local Tobacco Control Program, in an amount not to exceed 
$328,065 for the period of July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020, and authorize the HHS Director to sign Allocation 
Agreement No. CTCP-17-14 and Prospective Payment Invoices.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The 2019-20 fiscal year represents year three of a 4-year contract between the California Tobacco Control 
Program (CTCP) and the County of Inyo, covering July 1, 2017- June 30, 2021. The comprehensive 4-year plan 
for 2017-2021 incorporates additional tobacco tax funding, bringing the total allocation to $369,105.00 for FY 
2017-18, $302,415.00 for FY 2018-19, $328,065.00 for FY 2019-20 and $300,000 for FY 2020-21.  

The Scope of Work objectives under this contract include activities to support adult and youth coalitions, a retail 
objective that focuses on limiting tobacco promoting influences and includes a required legislated policy (for 
example, establishing a minimum package or volume size for tobacco products), and a second policy objective 
focused on reducing exposure to secondhand smoke (for example, a policy that restricts smoking in entryways).  
The Scope of Work for Inyo also includes an optional cessation objective that will allow us to promote cessation 
materials and provide training and coordination with partner agencies.

The funds the County will receive will not be used to supplant existing funding and will be spent according to the 
budget approved by the California Department of Public Health. The signed “Acceptance of Allocation 
Agreement” serves as acceptance of the allocation for FY 2019-2020 and acknowledges the conditions attached 
to the funds. The Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan for FY 2017-2021 and the allocation agreement will end 
on June 30, 2021. Any remaining balances must be returned to the CDPH Cigarette and Tobacco Surtax Fund. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not ratify and approve this agreement, which would disallow Inyo County from 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

accepting the funds for FY 19/20 and would make Inyo County noncompliant with Tobacco Control program 
requirements.  If Inyo County is deemed noncompliant by CDPH, the State will fund another agency to administer 
the mandated Tobacco Control program in Inyo County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Superintendent of Schools and individual school districts, Inyo County Wellness Center, Toiyabe 
Indian Health Project, Owens Valley Career Development Center, Bishop Union High School, and Mono County 
Public Health.
 
FINANCING:
State and Federal funding for the local Tobacco Control Education Program is $328,065. Funds are brought into 
individual trust accounts as required by CDPH (505117 & 1505118) and later transferred into the Tobacco 
(640317) budget in State Grants (4498) as reported on the reimbursement requests submitted to the State.  No 
County General Funds
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Acceptance of Allocation Agreement





























County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
RE:  Immunization Local Assistance Federal Grant between County of Inyo and the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH). 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the CDPH Immunization Branch Subrecepient Information Form which 
acknowledges changes to the Scope of Work (SOW) and Budget Application to the current Immunization Local 
Assistance Funding between County of Inyo and California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for the period of 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the FY 2019-20 Federal Compliance 
Requirements form.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This agreement is coming before your Board as a ratification because the FY 2019-20 funding announcement for 
this grant was received from the California Department of Public Health on July 9, 2019. The following are the 
changes to the Immunization Local Assistance Grant Funding for the FY 2019-2020. The Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) No. is corrected to 93.268 from 93.539. The Total Federal Award to the State of 
California is changed from $40,729,706 to $35,474,060 and the Amount Made Available for Local Assistance 
Subrecipient went from $17,640,968 to $14,953,373. These changes reflect a 5-7% decrease in funding due to a 
return to pre-2015 baseline funding. 

The funding for FY 2019-20 is changed from $39,543 to $37,170 for Inyo County Health and Human Services.  
This reduction in funding will be covered by Health Realignment.  In order to receive the current year funding, 
HHS is required to submit an updated Subrecipient Information Form and sign the FY 2019-20 Federal 
Compliance Requirements of the Immunization Grant No. 1 NH231P922612-01-00 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
You can choose not to authorize Health and Human Services to sign and submit the Subrecipient Information 
Form and Federal Compliance Document for FY 2019-20 which would mean that HHS would not be able to 
invoice CDPH for immunization funding pursuant to the grant.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Community Healthcare Providers, Schools and Pharmacies



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
Funding for this grant is recognized as revenue in the Health budget (045100) in State Grants (4498). The 
funding for FY 2019-20 is changed from $39,543 to $37,170 for Inyo County Health and Human Services.  This 
reduction in funding will be covered by Health Realignment. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CDPH Immunization Assistance Funding Contract





















































County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Water Department 
 
RE:  Ratify and Approve Amendment Two between the County of Inyo and Environmental Science Associates 
(ESA) for the Owens River Water Trail (ORWT) CEQA Study 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between Inyo County and Environmental 
Science Associates (ESA) for the Owens River Water Trail (ORWT) CEQA Study, extending the term of the 
contract to October 31, 2019, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board approved a contract with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) on September 19, 2017 to 
complete a CEQA study (EIR) on the Owens River Water Trail Project.  The contract would have expired on 
November 1, 2018, but the term was extended by amendment One on June 26, 2018, which extended the term 
to August 1, 2019.

Further delays in completing the CEQA document related to the loss of lead staff at ESA, a recommendation by 
counsel to circulate the Administrative Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) to seek comments, and an 
unexpected volume of comments.  Amendment two would extend the contract to October 31, 2019.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approve the amendment.  This option would require staff to complete the CEQA study without the assistance 
of ESA.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding was provided for through an agreement between LADWP and Inyo County.  Funds were received and 
budgeted in the Water Department budget (024102) Professional Services (5265).
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Contract Amendment 2



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No. _______ 
Page 1 
 062912            

   

AMENDMENT NUMBER __________ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  

____________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES  

 

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and 
______________________________________, of ______________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Independent  
Contractor  Services dated   _________________________________, on County of Inyo Standard 
Contract No. ______, for  the term from ______________________   to  ______________________.  
 
 WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is ______________________________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No. _______ 
Page 2 

  
 062912 

 

AMENDMENT NUMBER __________ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO  AND  

____________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  SERVICES  
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ____________________________________              By: __________________________________ 
                Signature  

Dated:_________________________________         
             ___________________________________ 
                 Type or Print  

        
       Dated: ________________________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RE:  Approval of Board of Supervisors meeting minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of August 6, 2019 and August 
20, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the draft minutes have been approved by the 
Board, they will be posted for the public on the County's website: www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

TIMED ITEMS - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 27, 2019 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
RE:  Presentation on In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Health and Human Services - Request Board receive presentation Health and Human Services and Life, 
Remedies, and Celebrations on In Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
  
In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program provides in-home assistance to eligible aged, blind and disabled 
individuals as an alternative to out-of-home care, allowing recipients to remain safely in their own homes. The 
administration of IHSS is a complex partnership that includes the program recipients, who hire their caregivers; 
the California Department of Social Services (CDSS), who establishes the governing regulations for eligibility 
determination and service authorization; Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), who funds the services 
through the Medi-Cal program; the county, who conducts both Medi-Cal and IHSS eligibility determination and 
authorizes service hours; public authorities/nonprofit consortiums, who act as the Employer-of-Record and are 
responsible for negotiating on behalf of the county with the provider union; program advocates; and providers 
and their union. 
IHSS is currently comprised of four programs: 
• IHSS-Residual (IHSS-R), the original program, is a state-and-county funded program with 65% State and 35% 
county dollars of the non-federal share. IHSS-R recipients make up less than 1.5% of the overall IHSS 
population. 
• The Personal Care Services Program (PCSP) PCSP recipients are eligible for full-scope Federal Financial 
Participation (FFP), and these Medi-Cal services are funded with 50% Federal, 32.5 % State, and 17.5% County 
dollars. PCSP recipients make up about 53% of the overall IHSS population. 
• The IHSS Plus Option (IPO) recipients are also eligible for full-scope FFP Medi-Cal. IPO provides assistance to 
recipients who have parent-of-minor or spouse providers, or who receive Advance Pay (AP) and/or Restaurant 
Meal Allowance (RMA). IPO recipients make up a little over 2.5% of the overall IHSS population. 
• The Community First Choice Option (CFCO) was established through the Affordable Care Act of 2010 (enacted 
March 23, 2010) as a new State Plan option. CFCO provides home and community-based attendant services 
and supports for individuals who meet specific eligibility requirements. CFCO provides States with 6% additional 
federal funding for services and supports. CFCO recipients make up about 43% of the overall IHSS population. 
The complexity of the program is not only seen in the types of programming offered, but also in the way it is 
administered. This workshop will provide the Board with an overview of the roles of the recipients, providers, the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

state, the employer of record, and the county, as well as how these roles intersect. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to hear the presentation.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Life, Remedies, and Celebrations (LRC) and Service Employees International Union (SEIU)
 
FINANCING:
NA
 
ATTACHMENTS:


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	8. Request Board approve and award the contract for I
	Agenda Request Form
	Info-Tech-Inyo-ScannedContract

	9. Request Board:A.      Approve Resolution No. 2019
	Agenda Request Form
	Matching Grant Resolution


	 Departmental
	10. Request Board hear a presentation from Alta Planni
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft Study Presentation

	11. Request Board: A) receive a presentation by Planni
	Agenda Request Form
	SB2 Resolution
	2019-SB-2-Planning-Grants-Application

	12. Request Board ratify and approve the Allocation Ag
	Agenda Request Form
	Acceptance of Allocation Agreement

	13. Request Board ratify and approve the CDPH Immuniza
	Agenda Request Form
	CDPH Immunization Assistance Funding Contract

	14. Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 2 t
	Agenda Request Form
	Contract Amendment 2

	15. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	16. Health and Human Services - Request Board receive
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	17. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports

	Applicants Name: County of Inyo
	Applicants Agency Type: County Government
	Applicants Mailing Address: PO Drawer L
	City: Independence
	Zip Code: 93526
	County: Inyo 
	Website: www.inyocounty.us
	Authorized Representative Name: Clint Quilter
	Authorized Representative Title: County Administrative Officer
	Phone: 760-878-0292
	Fax: 
	Email: cquilter@inyocounty.us
	Contact Person Name: Cathreen Richards
	Contact Person Title: Planning Director
	Phone_2: 760-878-0263
	Fax_2: 760-872-2712
	Email_2: crichards@inyocounty.us
	Partners Name if applicable: 
	Partner Agency Type: 
	Partners Name if applicable_2: 
	Partner Agency Type_2: 
	fill_29: 160,000
	Planning Grants Program PGP the: County
	Name: Clint Quilter
	Title: County Administrative Officer
	Provide a description of the project and the scope of work to be performed below Use Appendix A for additional information if necessary Note If partnering with another local government or entity be sure to clarify the responsibilities and deliverables of your locality pursuant to such partnershipRow1: Inyo County is very rural with a large land area and low population. Ninety-eight-percent of the county's land is under the management of the National Park Service, Inyo National Forest, Bureau of Land Managment, State Land Commission, and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. Traditionally, it has been difficult for the County to meet its affordable housing requirements due to lack of available land for residential use and a tradition of rural develop patterns.Inyo County is proposing to hire a consultant to work with Planning Department staff to conduct a thorough vacant lands inventory and zoning review of properties located throughout the County. This information will be used identify land that might be appropriate for zone changes to promote affordable housing opportunities primarily by increasing allowable density. This will likely include increasing the amount of multi-family zoning. The review of the County's current zoning will also focus on  commercial zones for opportunities for infill (residential) development. Areas near public transportation and other services will be considered prime, but due to the County's very rural nature, other properties located in remote communities without these services might also be identified for zone changes. A review of the code language addressing accessory dwelling units will also be reviewed for infill opportunities.This work will include public outreach meetings and communication with property owners.Once land for zone changes and updates to current zoning for infill opportunities are identified, a CEQA evaluation (EIR) will be conducted on each property proposed for a zone change and on changes to the current zoning ordinance for infill opportunities. This will result in changes to single-family and open space designations to multi-family, and changes to out-right allow for mobile home parks, as well as allowing for multi-family residential uses in certain commercial zones without requiring discretionary approval. Any changes to the County's General Plan designations that might be necessary for consistency with the changes to the zoning will also be conducted.  (continued in Appendix A)
	Project Goals: 
	ObjectiveRow1: Prepare Requests for Proposals (RFPS) and hire a consultant.
	Est CostRow1: 1500
	DeliverableRow1: Contract with Consultant
	NotesRow1: 
	ObjectiveRow2: Conduct a vacant lands inventory
	Est CostRow2: 6200
	DeliverableRow2: List and Maps of vacant properties
	NotesRow2: 
	ObjectiveRow3: Prepare an analysis of vacant lands including zoning a proximity 
	Est CostRow3: 5200
	DeliverableRow3: List and Maps of vacant properties with proximity to services
	NotesRow3: 
	ObjectiveRow4: Review current commercial & accessory dwelling unit code 
	Est CostRow4: 8500
	DeliverableRow4: Memo on county's accessory dwelling unit language/proposed change
	NotesRow4: 
	ObjectiveRow5: Conduct a Public Workshop with the Planning Commission to discuss
	Est CostRow5: 1500
	DeliverableRow5: Comments from the public to consider moving forward
	NotesRow5: 
	ObjectiveRow6: Develop Draft Ordinance for proposed Zone and General Plan chngs
	Est CostRow6: 9800
	DeliverableRow6: Proposed Draft Ordinance, General Plan Amendments and project des
	NotesRow6: 
	ObjectiveRow7: Prepare NOP, Initial Study, conduct scoping
	Est CostRow7: 9500
	DeliverableRow7: Public review NOP/IS scoping meeting comments
	NotesRow7: 
	ObjectiveRow8: Prepare Administrative Draft EIR
	Est CostRow8: 56000
	DeliverableRow8: Technical studies, surveys and reports, internal review Draft
	NotesRow8: 
	ObjectiveRow9: Prepare Public Review Draft EIR
	Est CostRow9: 20000
	DeliverableRow9: Public Review Draft 
	NotesRow9: 
	ObjectiveRow10: Conduct public comment meeting
	Est CostRow10: 800
	DeliverableRow10: Public Comments for Final EIR
	NotesRow10: 
	ObjectiveRow11: Final EIR
	Est CostRow11: 35000
	DeliverableRow11: Final EIR
	NotesRow11: 
	ObjectiveRow12: Update Draft Zoning code and General Plan Amendment
	Est CostRow12: 4500
	DeliverableRow12: Draft for adoption proposal
	NotesRow12: 
	ObjectiveRow13: Planning Commission Hearing
	Est CostRow13: 750
	DeliverableRow13: Recommendation for Board of Supervisors
	NotesRow13: 
	ObjectiveRow14: Board Hearing
	Est CostRow14: 750
	DeliverableRow14: Adoption
	NotesRow14: 
	Est CostTotal Est Cost: 160000
	Federal Congressional District: 8th
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District: Colonel Paul Cook 
	Federal Congressional District_2: 
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District_2: 
	Federal Congressional District_3: 
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District_3: 
	Federal Congressional District_4: 
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District_4: 
	Federal Congressional District_5: 
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District_5: 
	Federal Congressional District_6: 
	Legislator NameFederal Congressional District_6: 
	State Assembly District: 26th 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District: Devon Mathis
	State Assembly District_2: 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District_2: 
	State Assembly District_3: 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District_3: 
	State Assembly District_4: 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District_4: 
	State Assembly District_5: 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District_5: 
	State Assembly District_6: 
	Legislator NameState Assembly District_6: 
	State Senate District: 8th
	Legislator NameState Senate District: Andreas Borgeas
	State Senate District_2: 
	Legislator NameState Senate District_2: 
	State Senate District_3: 
	Legislator NameState Senate District_3: 
	State Senate District_4: 
	Legislator NameState Senate District_4: 
	State Senate District_5: 
	Legislator NameState Senate District_5: 
	State Senate District_6: 
	Legislator NameState Senate District_6: 
	Rehabilitating maintaining and improving existing infrastructure that supports infill development and appropriate reuse and redevelopment of previously developed underutilized land that is presently served by transit streets water sewer and other essential services particularly in underserved areasRow1_2: 
	Seek or utilize funding or support strategies to facilitate opportunities for infill developmentRow1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_2: 
	Protecting preserving and enhancing the states most valuable natural resources including working landscapes such as farm range and forest lands natural lands such as wetlands watersheds wildlife habitats and other wildlands recreation lands such as parks trails greenbelts and other open space and landscapes with locally unique features and areas identified by the state as deserving special protectionRow1_2: 
	Actively seek a variety of funding opportunities to promote resource protection in underserved communitiesRow1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_4: 
	1 Uses land efficientlyRow1_2: 
	2 Is built adjacent to existing developed areas to the extent consistent with environmental protectionRow1_2: 
	3 Is located in an area appropriately planned for growthRow1_2: 
	4 Is served by adequate transportation and other essential utilities and servicesRow1_2: 
	5 Minimizes ongoing costs to taxpayersRow1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_6: 
	Incentives and other mechanisms beyond State Density Bonus Law to encourage housing with affordability termsRow1_2: 
	Efforts beyond state law to promote accessory dwelling units or other strategies to intensify singlefamily neighborhoods with more housing choices and affordabilityRow1_2: 
	Upzoning or other zoning modifications to promote a variety of housing choices and densitiesRow1_2: 
	Utilizing surplus lands to promote affordable housing choicesRow1_2: 
	Efforts to address infrastructure deficiencies in disadvantaged communities pursuant to Government Code Section 6530210Row1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_8: 
	Policies programs or ordinances to conserve stock such as an atrisk preservation ordinance mobilehome park overlay zone condominium conversion ordinance and acquisition and rehabilitation of market rate housing programsRow1_2: 
	Policies programs and ordinances to protect and support tenants such as rent stabilization antidisplacement strategies first right of refusal policies resources to assist tenant organization and education and just cause eviction policiesRow1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_10: 
	Building standards zoning and site planning requirements that address flood and fire safety climate adaptation and hazard mitigationRow1_2: 
	Longterm planning that addresses wildfire land use for disadvantaged communities and flood and local hazard mitigationRow1_2: Inyo County, City of Bishop - Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Community engagement that provides information and consultation through a variety of methods such as meetings workshops and surveys and that focuses on vulnerable populations eg seniors people with disabilities homeless etcRow1_2: 
	Other describe how this meets subarea objectiveRow1_12: 
	Certifying Officials Name: 
	Certifying Officials Title: 
	BaselineTiming eg reduced number of processing days: 
	ProjectedTiming eg reduced number of processing days: 
	DifferenceTiming eg reduced number of processing days: 
	NotesTiming eg reduced number of processing days: 
	BaselineDevelopment cost eg land fees financing construction costs per unit: 
	ProjectedDevelopment cost eg land fees financing construction costs per unit: 
	DifferenceDevelopment cost eg land fees financing construction costs per unit: 
	NotesDevelopment cost eg land fees financing construction costs per unit: 
	BaselineApproval certainty and reduction in discretionary review eg prior versus proposed standard and level of discretion: 
	ProjectedApproval certainty and reduction in discretionary review eg prior versus proposed standard and level of discretion: 
	DifferenceApproval certainty and reduction in discretionary review eg prior versus proposed standard and level of discretion: 
	NotesApproval certainty and reduction in discretionary review eg prior versus proposed standard and level of discretion: 
	BaselineEntitlement streamlining eg number of approvals: 
	ProjectedEntitlement streamlining eg number of approvals: 
	DifferenceEntitlement streamlining eg number of approvals: 
	NotesEntitlement streamlining eg number of approvals: 
	BaselineFeasibility of development: 
	ProjectedFeasibility of development: 
	DifferenceFeasibility of development: 
	NotesFeasibility of development: 
	BaselineInfrastructure capacity eg number of units: 
	ProjectedInfrastructure capacity eg number of units: 
	DifferenceInfrastructure capacity eg number of units: 
	NotesInfrastructure capacity eg number of units: 
	BaselineImpact on housing supply and affordability eg number of units: 
	ProjectedImpact on housing supply and affordability eg number of units: 
	DifferenceImpact on housing supply and affordability eg number of units: 
	NotesImpact on housing supply and affordability eg number of units: 
	BaselineOther: 
	ProjectedOther: 
	DifferenceOther: 
	NotesOther: 
	BaselineOther_2: 
	ProjectedOther_2: 
	DifferenceOther_2: 
	NotesOther_2: 
	Use this area for additional information if necessary: Changes to General Plan designations will be necessary with regard to allowed density by district and the proposed up-zoning.Once the CEQA evaluation is completed, the Draft zone changes and General Plan Amendments will be take to the Planning Commission for a Public Hearing on a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors for adoption. The project will then go to the Board of Supervisors for a Public Hearing for final adoption. By adopting the changes to the Zoning code and General Plan more multifamily housing, infill commercial housing and higher density residential building will be permitted by right; therefore, this project addresses numbers 1-3 of the State's Priority Policy Areas. 
	Use this area for additional information if necessary_2: 
	Check Box1: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off

	Date2_af_date: 
	Date3_af_date: 4/11/2014
	Check Box4: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	Date5_af_date: 
	0: 4/18/2018
	1: 3/28/2019

	Check Box6: 
	0: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes

	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Yes


	Check Box7: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	Check Box8: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Yes
	4: Off
	5: Off

	Check Box9: 
	0: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off

	1: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off


	Check Box10: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: Yes
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off
	6: Off
	7: Off
	8: Off
	9: Off
	10: Off
	11: Off
	12: Off
	13: Off
	14: Off
	15: Off
	16: Off

	Date11_af_date: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 

	Date12_af_date: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 

	Date13_af_date: 
	Text14: 
	0: 
	1: 

	Dropdown15: 
	0: [Applicant]
	1: [Applicant]
	2: [Applicant]
	3: [Applicant]
	4: [Applicant]
	5: [Applicant]
	6: [Applicant]
	7: [Applicant]
	8: [Applicant]
	9: [Applicant]
	10: [Applicant]
	11: [Applicant]
	12: [Applicant]
	13: [Applicant]

	Date16_af_date: 
	0: 
	0: 9/30/2019
	1: 11/1/2019

	1: 
	0: 11/1/2019
	1: 11/30/2019

	2: 
	0: 11/30/2019
	1: 12/15/2019

	3: 
	0: 12/15/2019
	1: 12/30/2019

	4: 
	0: 1/22/2020
	1: 1/22/2020

	5: 
	0: 1/22/2020
	1: 2/15/2020

	6: 
	0: 2/15/2020
	1: 3/15/2020

	7: 
	0: 3/15/2020
	1: 4/15/2020

	8: 
	0: 4/15/2020
	1: 5/15/2020

	9: 
	0: 5/30/2020
	1: 5/30/2020

	10: 
	0: 5/15/2020
	1: 6/15/2020

	11: 
	0: 6/15/2020
	1: 7/15/2020

	12: 
	0: 7/22/2020
	1: 7/22/2020

	13: 
	0: 8/4/2020
	1: 8/4/2020


	Dropdown17: 
	0: [Yes]
	1: [Yes]
	2: [Yes]
	3: [N/A]
	4: [N/A]
	5: [N/A]
	6: [N/A]
	7: [N/A]
	8: [N/A]
	9: [N/A]
	10: [N/A]
	11: [N/A]
	12: [N/A]
	13: [N/A]

	Date1_af_date: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 12/17/2017
	5: 
	6: 

	topmostSubform[0]: COSString{}
	Page1[0]: 
	AMENDMENT_NUMBER[0]:      TWO
	FOR_THE_PROVISION_OF_INDEPENDENT_CONTRACTOR_SERVICES[0]:                  ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES (ESA)
	hereinafter_referred_to_as__Contractor___have_entered_into_an_Agreement_for_the_Provision_of_Independent[0]: ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES (ESA)
	of[0]:  LOS ANGELES, CA
	Contractor__Services_dated[0]:    SEPTEMBER 19, 2017
	Contract_No[0]: 156
	for__the_term_from[0]:  SEPTEMBER 19, 2017
	to[0]: OCTOBER 31, 2019
	The_effective_date_of_this_Amendment_to_the_Agreement_is[0]:             August 1, 2019
	County_of_Inyo_Standard_Contract_-No[0]:  156
	TextField1[0]: a)  Section 2 (Term) is amended to read: "The term of this Agreement shall be from September 19, 2017, to October 31, 2019 unless sooner terminated as provided below."  All other references in the Agreement to the term are also amended to reflect the new term end date of August 1, 2019.  

	Page2[0]: 
	AGREEMENT_BETWEEN_THE_COUNTY_OF_INYO__AND[0]:     TWO
	FOR_THE_PROVISION_OF_INDEPENDENT_CONTRACTOR__SERVICES[0]:                ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES (ESA)
	TextField2[0]:     156




